
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


       July 28, ,2011
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on July 28, 2011, at 7:00 p.m. in the
of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Chairman Frady called the July 28, 2011 Board of Commissioners meeting to Order at 7:01 p.m.
Commissioner Hearn gave the Invocation and led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Horgan moved to Accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Presentation to those leaving service to Fayette County: Jimmy Adams and Joanna Huddleston.


Director of Public Safety Allen McCullough spoke about the years of service given by Jimmy Adams and
Joanna Huddleston, and both he and the Board presented them with their rocking chairs awarded to eligible
retirees.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.







Minutes
July 28, 2011
Page Number 2


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning
Ordinance, Article III Definitions, Article V General Provisions, and Article VI District Use Requirements
regarding beekeeping.


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina explained that the proposed amendments as presented were
due to a collaborative effort that particularly involved Zoning Administrator Dennis Dutton, Zoning Coordinator
Robyn Wilson, the Planning Commission, and a number of local beekeepers.  He said each person spent many
hours and endured many meetings trying to put the ordinance together.  He reviewed the efforts undertaken
on this issue since March 2011 and explained that two options were available to the Board for consideration.


He explained that Option One being offered allowed for beekeeping within the zoning ordinance, but does not
include any requirements such as setbacks, buffers, or other similar restrictions.


He explained that Option Two being offered was recommended by staff and the Planning Commission, and that
it reflected input received from the Board during the June 2011 Workshop meeting.  He said it included
provisions on Article V that do give some restrictions and allowance in A-R zoning.


Chairman Frady asked for those who supported the proposed amendments to speak.


Mike Maxwell: Mr. Maxwell spoke in favor of beekeeping and supported Option One as presented..  He spoke
about some of the undue obstacles embodied in Option Two, but he did agree with Option Two on the following
points:  Setback requires as given in Section 2-26.1(B), and the requirement that the beekeepers shall have
30 days from the time of a complaint to bring the beehive(s) into compliance as provided in Section 5-26.1(F).


Virginia Webb: Ms. Webb spoke in favor of beekeeping and supported Option One as presented.


Jerry Edwards: Mr. Edwards spoke in favor of beekeeping and supported Option One as presented.


David Hall: Mr. Hall spoke in favor of beekeeping and supported Option One as presented.


Darwin Edwards: Mr. Edwards spoke in favor of beekeeping and supported Option One as presented.


Noel Barlau: Mr. Barlau spoke in favor of beekeeping and supported Option One as presented.


Chairman Frady asked for those who opposed the proposed amendments to speak.  No one spoke in
opposition to the proposed amendments.


Commissioner Horgan moved to adopt Option One of the proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code
of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article III Definitions, Article V General Provisions, and Article
VI District Use Requirements, to include setbacks as provided in Section 2-26.1(B) of Option Two, and to
include the requirement that the beekeeper shall have 30 days from the time of a complaint to bring the
beehive(s) into compliance as provided in Section 5-26.1 (F) of  Option Two.  Commissioner McCarty seconded
the motion.  Discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and Ordinance
Number 2011-05, identified as “Attachment 2", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
July 28, 2011
Page Number 3


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Gordon Furr: Mr. Furr spoke about the fire station in Tyrone and he asked why the County had not spent money to
maintain the station.  He said about five years the Board asked him to look at the septic tank at the fire station, and he
asked why the Board had not spent money to upkeep the station.  He mentioned that he had heard a new fire station
was to be built on Jenkins Road, but he thought it was a poor location due to the railroad track in close proximity. 


Vic Remeneski: Mr. Remeneski noted that the recent work and earlier vote concerning the beekeeping issue was an
example of when “bureaucracy gets involved with Mother Nature”, and he could not believe all of the time and man-hours
put into a common sense issue.  He spoke about the frustration felt by citizens who feel their state and federal
representatives do not listen to them.  He compared the United States’ Senates’ actions to the Fayette County Board
of Commissioners, made up of Republicans, who are acting like Washington D.C. Democrats by refusing to let the
citizens vote on House Bill 240.  He said the people are frustrated that the local elected officials refused to listen to the
vast majority of Fayette County’s voters’ wishes.  


David Hall: Mr. Hall said it would be good to use SPLOST funds to lower the County’s general expenses, and that the
money would be far better spent in order to lower property taxes and pay needs other than the West Fayetteville Bypass.
He said the West Fayetteville Bypass is a “bad road” that will cause increasing crime rates and will not accomplish traffic
reduction.  He said the majority of the people are against the West Fayetteville Bypass, and that the Board needed to
consider allowing the people to vote on House Bill 240.  


Dennis Chase: Mr. Dennis Chase spoke about the current Stormwater Program and proposed fees under consideration
by Fayette County.  He noted several areas of concern with the program, particularly with respect to the research and
expenditures underlying the issue, and the possibility that properties that do not impact the stormwater program will be
charged fees alongside those properties that actually do affect the county’s stormwater structure.


Bob Ross: Mr. Ross thanked Public Works Director Phil Mallon and Chief Financial Officer Mary Holland who responded
to his inquiries with promptness, timeliness, thoroughness, and professionalism.  He also thanked County Administrator
Jack Krakeel, and he thanked Commissioners Hearn and Horgan for their “willingness to work with me on another project
that I have been involved in.”  He thanked the Board for maintaining Public Comments at the beginning of the meeting,
and he voiced concern with two sections of the proposed ordinance listed under Old Business Item 13. 


Angela Hinton Fonda: Ms. Hinton Fonda spoke about Old Business Item 13 on the Agenda. She asked the Board to
either not vote to adopt the proposed Ordinance, or to hold it for further discussion, review, and revision.  She said Mr.
Ross spoke about much of her concerns, and then she spoke of some other sections that gave her “great concern” as
well.  


Randy Ognio: Mr. Ognio spoke about Old Business Item 13, saying he agreed with Commissioner Brown’s points that
were raised at the July 6th Workshop meeting., and that he also agreed with Mr. Ross’ and Ms. Hinton Fonda’s points
as well.  He then spoke about other sections of the proposed Ordinance that he had concerns with.  







Agenda
July 28, 2011
Page Number 4


Claudia Eisenburg: Ms. Eisenburg thanked Chairman Frady.  She said she read The Citizen, published on July 27, and
based on the written article she thanked the Chairman for “your diligent work with the ARC, and I know what you did was
not popular among your peers, and again I appreciate you being proactive.”  She said she has had her doubts about the
T-SPLOST, that she thought it was to fund mass transit for metro Atlanta, and that while she has never been concerned
about a bus or train running through Fayette County she has been concerned about having to pay for someone else’s
transportation.  She said she could not afford to pay for others transportation, especially with the cost of living rising, and
to force Fayette County fund other’s transportation is “just shameful”.  


Tom Halpin: Mr. Halpin noted that in The Citizen, published on July 27th, when the list of Fayette County’s projects was
published that appeared before the Atlanta Regional Commission, he noticed that the East Fayetteville Bypass was
included on the list.  He noted that the ten counties are asking taxpayers to pay for the bypass again, even though the
citizens were told that 2004 SPLOST authorized money to be “set aside” to pay for the East Bypass.  He concluded that
it appeared this was “double taxation”.  He asked why Fayette County was asking the taxpayers to pay for a project
twice, and if they are not being asked to be paid for twice, then this was something that the County needs to reconsider
or explain the request to the taxpayers.  


Marty Harbin: Mr. Harbin thanked Commissioner Brown for his comments at the July 14th meeting.  He said the Board
should realize that the county is dealing with economic conditions it has not seen before, and that he had watched many
businesses that he serves go out of business.  He noted that the County’s staff reported that more houses are being
reevaluated for their declining values, and tax revenues are going down.  He continued that the newspapers are reporting
that the School Board is expecting “negative numbers” since their federal and state funds are “drying up.”   He explained
that as a business man he has had to “put people off” and has had to “cut back”, and that, as a general rule,
governments do not make those kinds of decisions. He encouraged the County to be cautious in making decisions,
especially since the economic situation driven by the federal government was bleak.     


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Brown asked for Consent Agenda Items 4 and 6 to be removed for discussion.


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 3-12 excluding Items 4 and 6.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


3. Approval of staff’s request to extend the contract with Trammell-Horton Contracting, L.L.C. for ninety
(90) days for the purpose of completing the current Library Expansion project.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into Contract Number S013583-PR with the Georgia
Department of Transportation for the resurfacing of Goza and Old Senoia Roads and authorization for
the Chairman to execute said contract.


Commissioner Brown asked what the total cost to the county would be for this resurfacing project, and if the
cost was budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget.  Public Works Director Phil Mallon replied that that total
anticipated cost was approximately $446,000 , but the actual cost would vary due to petroleum cost
fluctuations.  He added that Fayette County would be reimbursed for nearly the same amount of the cost of this
project.  He also clarified that the net cost to the county was based on material only, but did not factor in other
costs for equipment and labor.  He concluded that the funds for this project had been budgeted for Fiscal Year
2012.







Agenda
July 28, 2011
Page Number 5


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 4 as presented.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and
Contract Number S013583-PR, identified as “Attachment 4", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.


5. Approval of staff’s request that the County accept the Local Public Acceptance Resolution 66 (1318L),
prepared by the Georgia Department of Transportation, for recently completed improvements at the
intersection of State Route 92 and Hilo Road and Kingswood Drive; and authorization for Chairman to
execute same.  A copy of the request and Local Public Acceptance Resolution 66, identified as
“Attachment 5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


6. Approval of staff’s request for the Chairman to sign a Temporary Right of Entry Agreement with CSX
Transportation, Inc. for pavement improvements at the CSX Railroad Crossing on Sandy Creek Road,
and to approve staff’s request to obtain related insurance coverage as required.


Commissioner Brown asked why CSX Transportation was not doing the work since they often work on the
crossings in Peachtree City and other areas.  Public Works Director Phil Mallon answered that although he is
not an expert on the topic, generally if improvements are required for track maintenance that work would be
the railroad’s responsibility, but roadwork is generally the responsibility of the county.  Commissioner Brown
asked if Fayette County had asked CSX Transportation to work on the road and if CSX had refused.  Mr. Mallon
answered that CSX had been asked for assistance with the road and they had refused.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 6 as presented.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and
Temporary Right of Entry Agreement, identified as “Attachment 6", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


7. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to authorize the Chairman to sign the Equitable Sharing Agreement
and Certification document, as required by the United States Department of Justice and the United
States Department of the Treasury.  A copy of the request and the Equitable Sharing Agreement and
Certification document, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.


8. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to amend the Fiscal Year 2011 Overtime Budget for the Fayette County
Sheriff’s Office Criminal Investigations Division by $7,963.97 for reimbursement for employees assigned
to work with various Federal agencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to declare a Crossmatch Fingerprint Scanning machine to be
unserviceable, to acquire a new machine at a cost of $19,632.77, and to trade in the old machine for a
$4,228.50 credit, resulting in a net cost of $15,404.27 for the replacement machine.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10. Approval of staff’s request for the Board to declare two incinerators as unserviceable, and to authorize
staff to sell the incinerators to the highest bidder through the GovDeals website.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Agenda
July 28, 2011
Page Number 6


11. Approval of staff’s request to declare two planimeters and a Leica GS20 GPS with an external Antenna
Upgrade Package as unserviceable, and to authorize staff to sell the specified items on the GovDeals
website to the highest bidder.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 11", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


12. Approval of the July 6, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes and the July 14, 2011 Board
of Commissioners Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


13. Consideration of a proposed Ordinance which addresses the procedures, decorum and rules of order
used for conducting County Commission meetings.


Commissioner Brown asked for a continuance of Old Business Item 13 and asked for it to be considered at the
next regularly scheduled Board of Commissioners meeting held on August 11, 2011.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the request.


County Attorney Scott Bennett informed the Board that if it were intending to table the item until the August 11,
2011 Board of Commissioners meeting that the Board would need to vote on the item.  He added that if the
Board intended to continue the item until the upcoming Workshop meeting then no vote would be required.


Commissioner Brown stated that the reason he wanted to move the item to a Thursday meeting is that he would
try to present an alternative to the ordinance, and then get it into the people’s hands so they could comment
on it at the meeting.


Commissioner Brown moved to table the present item until the August 11, 2011 Board of Commissioners
meeting.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.  A copy of the request and proposed Ordinance, identified as “Attachment 12", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.


14. Consideration of an updated intergovernmental agreement between Fayette County and the
municipalities of Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone, and the Board of Education, which addresses
funding and operation of the Fayette County E-911 Communications System; and consideration of the
creation of an E-911 special tax district.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel explained that this issue has been on-going for the past 18 months based
on the municipalities’ requests to create a special tax district to fund E-911 operations, and that he had been
working with the various city managers to craft a new agreement for the operation of the Consolidated
Communications Center.  He told the Board that there were several reasons that the municipalities had made
their request, and he briefly explained those reasons.


Next, Mr. Krakeel informed the Board that there were two provisions in the current agreement before the Board
that were “somewhat different” from a prior agreement they had reviewed, and that the provisions were added
after inquiry from the Town of Tyrone.  He explained that the first provision concerned what happens to any
fund balance that may accrue in the final year of per capita contributions.  He continued explaining that the
agreement requires that even after the county establishes the tax district, the per capita contributions will
continue for a period of two years in order to help pay for the operation of the Consolidated Communications







Agenda
July 28, 2011
Page Number 7


Center, and that the tax district would absolve the current outstanding debt.  Any money left over at the end of
the two year time period would be accrued to the E-911 special tax district.  At the end of the two years, the E-
911 special tax district would become fully responsible for the funding of E-911 operations.  


Mr. Krakeel told the Board that the second provision concerned the ability of municipalities to withdraw from
the E-911 special tax district.  He explained that the agreement is for 50 years with 10-year renewal dates built
into it.  Municipalities would be able to enact the withdrawal provision 18 months prior to the 10-year renewal
date, but in so doing they would incur a termination fee equivalent to the tax generated within that jurisdiction
for a two year period.  County Attorney Scott Bennett clarified that the termination fee was not a penalty, per
say, since the County often spends large amounts of money for equipment, software, and other needs for the
Communications Center, and if a municipality withdrew from the agreement, the County could face a potentially
heavy debt burden.


County Attorney Scott Bennett noted that the legal counsels’ for both the Town of Tyrone and the City of
Peachtree City would return to their respective governing bodies in order to ratify the changes.  He added that
he had not spoken to legal counsel for the City of Fayetteville, but added that the City had adopted the
agreemennt, and allowed for modifications to it.  He told the Board that he would relay its concerns to the City
of Fayetteville that they should consider the two provisions, however, he closed saying only one document
would be signed by all parties.


After making his report, Mr. Krakeel asked the Board to adopt a resolution establishing a Special E-911 Tax
District that would encompass the entirety of Fayette County.


Commissioner Horgan moved to adopt a new E-911 Intergovernmental Agreement along with Resolution 2011-
11; creating a Special E-911 Tax District.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.
The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, the Intergovernmental Agreement, and Resolution
2011-11, identified as “Attachment 13", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of staff’s request to approve a Change Order with Heath & Lineback Engineers, in the
amount of $24,900, for the design of a 16-inch waterline relocation at the Westbridge Road bridge over
Morning Creek (SPLOST Project No. B-2, Contract No. P733).


Commissioner Horgan asked for clarity on how the project and its design would save the county money.  Mr.
Mallon replied that Public Works had two options.  The first option was to keep the waterline independent of
the bridge, and that it would essentially require a mini-bridge for the waterline.  He said the design cost for that
work was slightly less than the second option, but estimates showed that it would cost up to $100,000 more
to construct.  He said due to cost savings, the second option was chosen,  and that it allowed to put the
waterline on the bridge itself.


Commissioner Hearn  moved to approve staff’s request to approve a Change Order with Heath & Lineback
Engineers, in the amount of $24,900, for the design of a 16-inch waterline relocation at the Westbridge Road
bridge over Morning Creek (SPLOST Project No. B-2, Contract No. P733).  Commissioner Horgan seconded
the motion. No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and Change
Order, identified as “Attachment 14", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Agenda
July 28, 2011
Page Number 8


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Resolution 2011-11 Read Into the Record: County Administrator Jack Krakeel read Resolution 2011-11, approved by
the Board under Old Business 14, into the record.


The County Administrator gave no other report.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty announced that he was totally against stormwater fees or anything
else that would take money out of the citizens’ pockets, regardless of it being called a tax or a fee.  He understood that
the County was approximately $18 million behind on its stormwater fees, but if the fees were implemented even churches
and schools will pay them.  He said the school budget is not “working too well right now” and their millage rate will have
to increase to fix the budget.  He continued that church donations would also have to rise in order to pay the fees.  He
repeated that he is against stormwater fees because,  according to information he received from the State’s handbook
that serves as a guide to Commissioners concerning SPLOST projects, that stormwater fees can be paid for with
SPLOST funds that would make up the $18 million shortfall and would enable the Road Department to continue fixing
roads,  making improvements, and repairing stormwater needs.


Commissioner Hearn: Commissioner Hearn addressed Mr. Randy Ognio’s public comments concerning the proposed
changes to decorum.  He said he had noted them and will recommend a number of those changes to be made, including
others that Angela Hinton Fonda and Bob Ross had also suggested.  He then responded to Mr. Tom Halpin’s comments
concerning the East Fayetteville Bypass.  He explained that while he is undecided with his support on this issue, if
Fayette County was going to be a part of the T-SPLOST, it would be incumbent on the County to put the best projects
on the list.   He said there are many things that affect Fayette County, and as Mr. Marty Harbin pointed out, the County’s
revenues are down.  He said he wanted to assure the citizens that the County has made some serious cuts in expenses
over the past three years including with personnel issues and other issues.  He said he was proud that Fayette County
is not faced with the same changes confronting Cobb County and Clayton County, and that it is incumbent for the Board
to be good stewards of the taxpayer’s money and to make good decisions.  He wanted the people to know what
responsibility the Board was charged with and for them to know that the Board works at the charge every day.


Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown stated that Mr. Marty Harbin’s point related to House Bill 240 was apropos,
and he thought the County was deficit budgeting and has done so for the last few years.  He said that while Fayette
County is not increasing taxes such as Cobb and Clayton Counties are, Fayette County was slowly heading in that
direction.  He said revenues are not expected to rise anytime soon, so the County has to be careful. He referred back
to the last Board of Commissioners meeting, and particularly  to comments given by Commissioner McCarty concerning
working on stormwater projects as part of the SPLOST - Road Project program.  He said he went back and reviewed
the information, and that stormwater work is included in the scope of road projects.  He referred to New Business Item
15 as an example where utility removal was not originally in the scope of the SPLOST  project but the Board decided
to do it.  He concluded there was some confusion as to whether Commissioner McCarty was correct on the issue, but,
in fact, stormwater projects can be included within the Road SPLOST under the premise of maintaining roads.    







Agenda
July 28, 2011
Page Number 9


ADJOURNMENT


Commissioner  moved to adjourn the July 28, 2011 Workshop Meeting.  Commissioners seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board adjourned at 8:34 p.m.
                 
______________________________________                               __________________________________________
       Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk  Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 11th day of August , 2011.


___________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


August 11, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


PUBLIC HEARING:


1. Public Hearing on proposed 2011 Property Tax Millage Rates which are
scheduled to be adopted on August 25, 2011.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


2. Approval of Policy No. 200.27 which establishes a formal set of standards to
be used whenever the County acquires privately-owned property for the
construction of a transportation project.


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Policy No. 300.07 which amends
the County’s Reserve Fund Policy in compliance with the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54.


4. Approval of staff’s request to declare a 2002 Hustler “Z” mower
unserviceable, and approval to replace the mower at a cost of $11,563.00.


5. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to authorize the Chairman to sign the
Questionnaire for Officials describing the Accounting Procedures and
Requirements for Shared Cash, Proceeds, and Tangible Property.


6. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Office
Criminal Investigations Division by $2,079.73 for reimbursement for
employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


7. Approval of the Sheriff’s Department Jail Division to dispose of items of
clothing and bedding from the Jail which are no longer serviceable.


8. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to authorize the
Peachtree City Water and Sewerage Authority (WASA) to insert a flyer in
customer’s water bills during the months of September 2011 and March 2012.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
August 11, 2011
Page Number 2


9. Consideration of a Joint Funding Agreement between Fayette County and the U.S. Department of the Interior
Geological Survey which provides the monitoring of water flow at four sites.  The Agreement is for one year
beginning October 1, 2011 and ending September 30, 2012 with a cost to the Water System of $90,600.00


10. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to reimburse a Water System customer for damaged
clothing in the amount of $103.07 with two stipulations conditioned upon the customer submitting the clothing
in exchange for the check.


11. Approval of the July 28, 2011 Board of Commissioners Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


12. Further consideration of a proposed Ordinance which addresses the procedures, decorum, and rules of order
used for conducting County Commission meetings; and consideration of an alternative Ordinance proposed
by Commissioner Brown.


13. Consideration of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award construction of the Lake McIntosh Raw
Water Pump Station bid to the low bidder, Willow Construction, in the amount of $1,293,600, and authorization
for the Chairman to sign the contract contingent upon review by the County Attorney.


14. Consideration of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award the annual contract for Waterline Extensions
for Fiscal Year 2012 to the low bidder, Lantz Construction, in the amount of $765,355.00, and to authorize the
Chairman to sign said contract, pending review by the County Attorney.


NEW BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of the Water Committee’s recommendation to issue a purchase order for the purchase of all
required Orion water meters, by September 1, 2011, at a total cost of $2,018,465.78, to accept a credit of
$1,009,761.49, and approval to pay for the project during Fiscal Year 2013.


16. Consideration of Resolution No. 2011-12 which establishes a 9-1-1- charge on prepaid wireless transactions
at the point of retail sale.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Building & Grounds Greg Ownby


Approval of staff's request to declare a 2002 Hustler "Z" mower unserviceable, and approval to replace the mower at a cost of $11,563.00 


from low bidder Toney's Lawnmower & Equipment.


The Buildings and Grounds Department has a 2002 Hustler "Z" mower (Equipment #25352) that caught fire and was burned beyond 


repair.  This mower will need to be replaced. 


 


Staff received three bids from three vendors for the replacement of the mower, and has chosen the low bidder, Toney's Lawnmower & 


Equipment.  The replacement mower will cost $11,563.00.


Approval of staff's request to declare a 2002 Hustler "Z" mower unserviceable, and approval to replace the mower at a cost of $11,563.00 


from low bidder Toney's Lawnmower & Equipment.


Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Funds are requested for this purchase.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, August 11, 2011





























		Building & Grounds- Mower Agenda Request File.pdf

		Building & Grounds- Mower Backup

		Picture 1-fireball.pdf

		picture 2- danny b

		Building & Grounds- Mower Backup

		Building & Grounds - Hustler Super Z Mower Replacement Backup.pdf

		Building & Grounds-  Mower Backup



		Building & Grounds- Mower Purchasing Backup












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner McCarty


Approval of  Policy No. 200.27 which establishes a formal set of standards to be used whenever the County acquires privately-owned 


property for the construction of a transportation project.


  Whenever counties and cities acquire private property for transportation projects where Georgia Department of Transportation funds are 


used to pay for any part of the project, the local government is required to use GDOT's guidelines for acquiring the property. GDOT's 


guidelines are based on federal regulations known as the Uniform Relocation Act. Fayette County complies with these requirements 


anytime state funds are used to pay any of the cost of the project. 


  However, Fayette County from time to time acquires property for public purposes where no state or federal funds are used. These 


projects may be road or bridge improvements, reservoirs, buildings, parks, etc. Comm. McCarty asked to have a discussion about the 


County adopting its own set of standards to be used any time the County must acquire private property for the purpose of building a 


public project. These standards would meet/exceed GDOT's guidelines and could be distributed any time a property owner is expected to 


negotiate the acquisition of property with the County. At the Board's July 6 Workshop, this item was discussed and the Board asked the 


County Attorney to draft a policy as requested. At the Aug. 3 Workshop, there was a final review of the proposed policy and agreement  


to place this issue on the Aug.11 Board agenda for adoption. The policy on the August 11 agenda will only apply to transportation 


projects at this time. However, in the future a policy may be developed addressing the acquisition of private property for other types of  


public projects. 


Approval of  Policy No. 200.27 which establishes a formal set of standards to be used whenever the County acquires privately-owned 


property for the construction of a transportation project.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, August 3, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Commissioner submitted this agenda request with back-up material to the County Clerk on June 14, 2011.


Old BusinessWednesday, August 3, 2011







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 


ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY POLICY 
Transportation Projects 


200.27 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the acquisition of property for the construction of 
transportation projects. 
 
POLICY 
 
There shall be a uniform process for the acquisition of property for transportation projects in the County to 
provide staff and property owners guidance in negotiating with the County. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
The following procedure will be followed in acquiring property for transportation projects in 
the County: 


Fayette County, Georgia must acquire land to improve its transportation system.  If a person owns 
property that will be needed for an existing or proposed transportation facility, they will be 
interested in the procedure which the County follows in acquiring the necessary right of way. 


This brochure explains why property may be needed, the rights of the property owner and provides 
answers to some of the questions that will may be asked.  The Policy is not all inclusive, but rather 
is intended to serve as an outline. The County’s representative assigned for the acquisition of 
property should be able to answer additional questions. 


I. What Determines Whether Property Is Needed. 


Many factors are critically analyzed in locating and designing modern transportation systems. The 
element of need is the first consideration.  For many years, as an example, roads were improved 
and hard-surfaced to meet the needs of the new automobile, people were willing to pay almost any 
price to get the roads that they wanted and needed. During this time, economics was the main 
consideration and the best road was almost always the shortest distance between two points.  In 
more recent years, as the Interstate System and other major limited-access highways were built, the 
tremendous impact of these modern, safe, efficient and really superhighways came to be felt on the 
entire society. Planners and designers began to be more concerned with aesthetics and safety than a 
better location.  


Now we have turned completely around. No longer is money the overriding factor. It is still a very 
important consideration, for we can build nothing without it, but it is no longer the most important, 
and it should not be. Now roads must do more than just transport people, goods and services. They 
must be planned and designed to blend with our communities. 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 
II. The County’s Right To Acquire Property 


The Constitution of Georgia and the Constitution of the United States provide that private property 
may be acquired for public purposes and that just compensation be paid for all property so 
acquired. 


III. Notification to Property Owners that Property Is Needed. 


The County will advise property owners well in advance of actual negotiations. This is done 
through public hearings, meetings and personal visits. DO NOT ACT ON RUMORS. Property 
owners should have the facts from the County before building or making major changes. The mere 
fact that a survey is being made on or near a piece of property does not mean that the final location 
of a proposed transportation facility will cross certain lands. 


IV. What Will Be Paid For Property? 


Property owners are entitled to receive fair market value for their property. Market value is defined 
as the most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market under 
all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller, each acting prudently, knowledgeably 
and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition is the 
consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from seller to buyer. The 
County will negotiate with a Property owner to reach an agreeable price for the property.  Please 
note that the County can only pay the fair market value for the property, consequential damages, if 
any, and other costs, such as moving expenses, fence relocation, etc.  If the parties cannot agree to a 
price for the acquisition of the property, the value will be determined from appraisals prepared by 
highly qualified appraisers. Property owners or their designated representative will be given an 
opportunity to accompany the appraiser during his/her inspection. 


The appraisals are checked for accuracy to make certain that no items of allowable value have been 
overlooked or omitted. Property owners will be offered the full amount of the appraiser’s estimate 
of fair market value.  This offer will be made in writing. 


If the entire property is needed, Property owners will be offered the fair market value of the entire 
property. If only a part of the property is needed, Property owners will be offered the fair market 
value of that part to be acquired plus any damages accruing to the remaining property. Should the 
remainder be classified by the County as an uneconomic remnant the County will offer to purchase 
the remainder. 


V. Some Advantages Of Selling Property To The County 


1. Cash Sale 


2. No real estate commission to pay 


3. Reimbursement will be made for: 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 


a. Recording and/or cancellation fees, and similar expenses incidental to the 
conveyance of the acquired property to the County. 


b. Penalty costs for pre-payment of any pre-existing recorded mortgage entered into 
in good faith encumbering such real property. 


c. A pro-rated portion, on a calendar year basis, of all real estate property taxes 
which have been paid or which are due and payable at the time of acquisition. 


d. Reasonable survey fees to reestablish existing property corner pins that were 
removed as a result of the acquisition or construction. 


4. The owners do not pay legal or appraisal fees unless they hire their own attorney or 
appraiser. 


VI. Who Prepares The Deed And Handles The Closing? 


The closing will be similar to that required in any real estate transfer. The County prepares the 
deed. There will be no charges for preparing the deed.  


Naturally, it may be necessary to use the proceeds from the agreed upon price to satisfy outstanding 
loans or liens on the property.  The County representative will be glad to try to bring together all 
parties who have any interest in the property. When an agreement is reached, the County will 
deliver payment upon satisfaction of any outstanding encumbrances and upon execution of the 
deed.   


VII. What Happens If An Agreement To Sell Cannot Be Reached? 


Since the County must acquire the property in order to construct the proposed facility, Georgia law 
provides that the County can initiate a condemnation suit under eminent domain proceedings. This 
suit would be filed in the Superior Court of Fayette County. One of the following methods will be 
employed:  


(a) Declaration of Taking 


This is the most commonly used method. Upon filing the petition, the County deposits its 
estimate of just compensation. At this time title passes to the County. 


(b) Special Master 


Under this method the Judge of the superior court appoints an attorney to hear the evidence 
and make an award. 


(c) Three Assessors 


Under this method one assessor is selected by the owner, one by the County and the third by 
agreement of the first two, or if agreement cannot be reached, the third is appointed by the 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 


Judge of the Superior Court. These three review the facts and make an award based on their 
findings. 


VIII. May I Keep My Home Or Other Buildings? 


There are two procedures by which the owner may retain the home or other buildings located on or 
partially on the property being acquired as right of way. During negotiations an agreement will be 
reached with the owner in regard to such buildings and will be spelled out in the agreement to sell. 
These procedures are as follows: 


1. The owner may wish to retain the buildings at a predetermined retention value set by the 
County and make arrangements to have the buildings moved to a new location. Under this 
procedure, the County will pay the owner the appraised value less salvage value as 
determined by the County. The owner will be required to post a cash bond until the 
buildings have been removed. Once the buildings have been removed the cash bond will be 
refunded. 


2. Improvements not retained under paragraph one (1) may be sold on the open market if 
the County finds that there is a market for such improvements. An owner will be furnished a 
proposal by a County representative when the buildings are offered for sale. In some 
instances, buildings located in the right of way of a project may be advertised for sale with 
the understanding that they will be delivered to the purchaser when and if they are acquired 
by the County. Offerings for sale prior to acquisition are sometimes necessary in order to 
coordinate the disposal of buildings for an entire project, expedite demolition or removal 
after the buildings are acquired and vacated, and minimize vandalism. 


IX. When Must I Vacate My Property? 


The occupants of property required for rights of way will not be required to vacate prior to three 
months from the date they were first and formally contacted in regard to the purchase of the 
occupied property nor less than two months from the date of its acquisition. 


X. May I Move Prior To Negotiations To Acquire My Property? 


It is the property owner’s right to move when they wish. In the event a property owner desires to 
move prior to negotiations for the parcel (occupied property), eligibility for Relocation Assistance 
Benefits could be forfeited. 


XI. Suppose I Need Assistance In Relocating? 


Any person, family, business or farm displaced shall be offered relocation assistance services for 
the purpose of locating a comparable replacement property. Relocation services are provided by 
qualified personnel employed by the County. It is their goal and desire to be of service and assist in 
a successful relocation. 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 
A representative of the County will contact all affected persons and explain the services and 
payments available. Property owners will be provided current lists of comparable replacement 
housing, available on the open market and “decent, safe and sanitary”. 


The County’s representative is familiar with the services provided by other public and private 
agencies in the community. Please make any needs known to the County’s representative; if this 
representative cannot personally help with specific problems, perhaps the representative knows 
someone who can.  


The County will furnish information concerning local housing ordinances, open housing, building 
codes, social services, data for such costs as security deposits, closing costs, typical down 
payments, interest rates and terms, VA and FHA insured loan requirements, real property taxes, 
consumer education literature on housing and various other subjects. 


XII. An Illegal Alien Is Not Eligible For Relocation Assistance Payments & Benefits 


Public Law 105-117 provides that aliens not lawfully present in the United States are not eligible to 
receive relocation assistance payments and/or any other benefits that are commonly provided to 
displacees. This law requires that persons seeking relocation payments or assistance under the 
Uniform Act certify, as a condition of eligibility, that they are citizens or are otherwise lawfully 
present in the United States. 


If it is discovered that some of the occupants of the household and/or business are illegal aliens, 
then any payments or benefits the family or business would have received if all were legally present 
in the U. S., would only be made payable to the remaining eligible family occupants or business 
members based on a pro rata share basis of each member’s eligible share. The shares of those that 
are illegal aliens cannot be paid to any of the remaining eligible displacees. Under law, the County 
may deny eligibility only if: 


(1) a person fails to provide the required certification; or 


(2) the County determines that a person’s certification is invalid, based on a fair and 
nondiscriminatory review of an alien’s documentation or other information that the agency 
considers reliable and appropriate; and 


(3) the agency concludes that denial would not result in “exceptional and extremely unusual 
hardship” situations. 


XIII. Will I Have To Pay Moving Costs To Have My Furniture And Other Personal 
Property Moved? 


If a Property owner is displaced, he/she is entitled to be reimbursed, subject to certain limitations 
and requirements, for reasonable and necessary moving costs. These costs may include the costs to 
dismantle, insure, disconnect, transport, crate, unload, load, reconnect and modify personal 
property. Also service charges necessary to disconnect and reconnect utilities are reimbursable. 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 
This does not include any costs which may be incurred to add to, improve, alter, or make physical 
changes to the replacement structure. Prior to payment for the removal and reinstallation of 
personalty, the owner and the County must agree in writing that the property is personalty 
and that the County is released from any payment for the property as realty. 


Moving costs may include temporary storage of personal property, not to exceed twelve (12) 
months, if the County determines storage is necessary.  In hardship cases, arrangements may be 
made for payment of moving expenses in advance, but only after the property on which the 
property owner resides has been acquired by the County.   


XIV. Persons Eligible For Moving Payments 


To be eligible for moving payments the property must be acquired by the County and the person 
must have been: 


1. In legal occupancy at the time the owner is given a written offer for the property to be 
acquired; or 


2. In legal occupancy at the time the property is acquired by the County. 


XV. Moving Payments – Individuals And Families 


Eligible individuals or families may be reimbursed for their reasonable and necessary moving costs 
by one of the three methods identified as Method “A”, Method “B”, or Method “C”. The method 
preferred must be selected before the move and indicated on the form entitled “Application for 
Moving Costs”. Such costs are not applicable to items classified by the County as real property. 
Property owners cannot combine any parts of the three methods. 


There is no limitation on the distance a property owner may move. However, reimbursement for 
transportation charges is limited to a distance of 50 miles, except with prior approval by the 
County. Such exceptions will only be allowed when the relocation cannot be accomplished within 
the 50 mile area and then only to the nearest comparable and available site. Claims must be filed 
with the County within eighteen (18) months of the date a tenant moves, owners have eighteen (18) 
months from the date of move or date of final payment for the acquired dwelling, whichever is 
later.  


Occupants of mobile homes are only eligible for payment under Methods “B” or “C” when the 
mobile home itself is classified as personal property. 


Method A -Fixed Moving Cost 


An eligible individual or family may choose to be reimbursed a fixed amount as determined 
by the County (Not Applicable for Mobile Homes). Determination of this amount is based 
upon the number of rooms having adequate furnishings. This amount includes a dislocation 
allowance to assist in utility reconnection charges.  


Method B -Actual Cost 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 


By written agreement between the County, the mover and property owner, a licensed mover 
and/or qualified performer of services may be chosen to move personal property. After 
services have been completed, the mover will present to the property owner an invoice, 
receipt, statement, or other acceptable documentation of moving costs which the property 
owner will forward to the County. The mover will be paid directly by the County for all 
reasonable costs. It may be necessary for more than one mover to complete the move. If so, 
each must be approved by the County prior to the move. Reconnection charges for utilities, 
telephones, TV cable, etc., will be reimbursed based on paid actual costs. 


Method C - Self Move 


The property owner may choose to move himself/herself and be reimbursed for actual 
reasonable expenses incurred, supported by paid receipted bills or other acceptable evidence 
of costs incurred. Such payments may not exceed the estimated cost of moving 
commercially, based on estimates secured by the County prior to moving. 


A claim form will be furnished to the property owner, which paid receipts must be attached 
and submitted to the County for payment. The County’s representative will assist the 
property owner in processing their claim. Reconnection charges for utilities, telephone, T.V. 
cable, etc. will also be reimbursed.  


XVI. Moving Payments-Businesses, Farm Operations, And Nonprofit Organizations 


Eligible businesses, farms and nonprofit organizations may be reimbursed for their reasonable and 
necessary costs of removal, or by moving a reinstallation of personal property by selecting one of 
the three methods explained below. In hardship cases, arrangements may be made for payment of 
moving expenses in advance of moving, however, this will only be made after the occupied 
property has been acquired by the County. The displaced business, farm or nonprofit organization 
must provide the County seven (7) days advance notice of the approximate date of the start of the 
move or disposition of the personal property. 


The expense of removal, reinstallation, reestablishment and modification of machinery, equipment, 
appliances and other items which have been considered as personalty, including reconnection of 
utilities to such items, which do not constitute an improvement to the replacement site, are eligible 
for reimbursement. 


Prior to payment of any expenses for removal and reinstallation of such property, the owner and the 
County shall agree in writing the property is personalty and the County is released from any 
payment for the property as realty. The owners or operators must (County personnel will assist if 
needed) prepare and execute a certified inventory of the items to be actually removed and 
reinstalled. This certified inventory must be prepared and attested to for all moves. If the items 
listed on the certified inventory deviate to a significant extent from the items actually removed and 
reinstalled, the amount previously agreed will be revised accordingly. 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 
In addition to Method A- Self Move or Method B- Actual Cost (see below), the following moving 
incidentals will be reimbursed, based on receipted bills, if pre-approved by the County and are 
considered reasonable and necessary: 


1) licenses 


2) permits 


3) relettering of signs 


4) replacing stationery on hand that is made obsolete may be reimbursed 


5) connection to available nearby utilities from the right-of-way to improvements at the 
replacement site 


6) professional services performed prior to the purchase or lease of a replacement site to 
determine its suitability for the displaced person’s business operation including but not 
limited to, soil testing, feasibility and marketing studies (excluding any fees or commissions 
directly related to the purchase or lease of such site.) At the discretion of the County a 
reasonable pre-approved hourly rate may be established 


7) impact fees or one time assessments for anticipated heavy utility usage, as determined 
necessary by the County 


The method desired must be selected prior to moving by executing a County form entitled 
“Application for Moving Costs Benefits.” Relocatees will be advised of the amount of estimate 
prior to signing. The County’s representative must be permitted to make reasonable and timely 
inspections of the personal property at both the acquired site and the replacement site and to 
monitor the move. Claims must be filed with the County within eighteen (18) months of the date of 
move or date of final payment for the property, whichever is later. 


(a) Method A -Self Move 


If the relocatees want to take full responsibility for the entire move, they may choose to be 
reimbursed by Method A, known as the Self-Move Method. 


The amount will be based on estimates prepared by the County and/or qualified moving 
contractors. The relocatee may elect to submit to the County paid receipted bills or other 
evidence of costs incurred to support the costs of the move. In no event will a payment be 
made in excess of what would have been paid for a move by a commercial mover. 


(b) Method B -Actual Cost 


An eligible relocatee may elect to be reimbursed by the Moving Contractor Method. The 
County will secure at least two (2) estimates from licensed moving contractors and will 
establish payment based on these estimates. Upon completion of the removal and 
reinstallation the County will make payment directly to the contractor.  







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 


(c) Alternate Payments In Addition To Method “A” Or “B” 


Payment for losses of tangible personal property may be made when it is decided not to 
move such property. A payment of this type requires a bona fide effort to sell the item(s). 
Reimbursement will also be made for the reasonable expenses incurred to effect the sale. 


The property owner should consult the County’s representative if they have personal 
property which may not be moved or which may be replaced at a new location. 


XVII. Reestablishment Costs 


The owner of a displaced small business, farm, or nonprofit organization is entitled to receive a 
payment for actual necessary and reasonable expenses to reestablish at a new site. This payment is 
limited to a maximum amount of $10,000.00 and will only be paid under Methods “A”, “B” or 
actual direct losses of tangible personal property payments.  


*Small Business -is a business having not more than 500 employees working at the site being 
acquired or displaced by a program or project, which site is the location of economic activity. The 
income generated from the business must have been reported and filed with the IRS and the 
Georgia Revenue Department in order to be eligible to receive reimbursement of the eligible 
expenses associated with the reestablishment of the business.  


When claiming this expense, the claimant will be required to submit certified copies of their current 
individual and business income tax returns to the County for verification and documentation. 


Sites occupied solely by outdoor advertising signs, displays or devices do not qualify as a business 
and are not eligible for the reestablishment expense. 


“Economic Activity” is when the site is producing or is capable of producing an ongoing legal 
financial activity currently in operation or where there has been some kind of economic 
development produced at or by the residence or building within the last twenty four (24) months 
prior to the initiation of negotiation for the parcel. A detailed list of the charges that were or will be 
involved in the reestablishment of the business will be reviewed by the County and all eligible costs 
that were actually incurred and paid will be reimbursed, but not to exceed the maximum amount 
allowed as stated above. These expenses include the following: 


1. Repairs or improvements to the replacement real property as required by Federal, State or 
local law, code or ordinance, 


2. Modifications to the replacement property to accommodate the business operation or 
make replacement structures suitable for conducting the business,  


3. Construction and installation costs for exterior signing to advertise the business, 


4. Redecoration or replacement of soiled or worn surfaces at the replacement site, such as 
paint, paneling or carpeting, 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 


5. Advertisement of replacement location, 


6. Estimated increased costs of operation during the first two (2) years at the replacement 
site for such items as: (a) lease or rental charges, (b) personal or real property taxes, (c) 
insurance premiums, and (d) utility charges, excluding impact fees,  


7. Other items that the County considers essential to the reestablishment of the business. 


The following is a non-exclusive listing of reestablishment expenditures not considered to be 
reasonable, necessary or otherwise eligible: 


1. Purchase or construction of capital assets, such as office furniture, filing cabinets, 
machinery, or trade fixtures. 


2. Purchase of manufacturing materials, production supplies, product inventory, or other 
items used in the normal course of the business operation. 


3. Interest on money borrowed to make the move or purchase the replacement property.  


4. Payment to a part-time business in the home which does not contribute materially to the 
household income. 


5. Sites occupied solely by outdoor advertising signs, displays or devices. 


XVIII. Actual Reasonable Expenses In Searching For A Replacement Location 


The owner of a displaced business, farm, or nonprofit organization may be reimbursed for the 
actual reasonable expenses in searching for a replacement location, not to exceed two thousand and 
five hundred dollars ($2,500). Such expenses may include transportation expenses, meals, lodging 
away from home and the reasonable value of time actually spent in search, including the fees of 
real estate agents or real estate brokers. 


(a) Receipted Bills - All expenses claimed, except the value of time actually spent in 
search, must be supported by receipted bills. 


(b) Time Spent in Search - Payment for a person(s) time actually spent in search must be 
documented and the hourly wage rate must be reasonable. Also a certified statement of the 
dates and hours spent searching, including the places visited and the persons contacted, 
must accompany this claim. 


(c) Method C - In Lieu Of “A” Or “B” 


In lieu of payment under Methods “A” or “B” and if actual direct losses of tangible personal 
property are not desired, an owner of a discontinued or relocated business, farm or nonprofit 
organization may be eligible to receive a payment equal to the past two (2) tax years 
average annual net earnings. 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 


Such payment shall not be less than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) nor more than twenty 
thousand dollars ($20,000.00). A person whose sole business at the displacement site 
(single or multi family units) is the rental of such property will not be eligible for this 
payment. 


For the owner of a business to be entitled to this payment, the County must determine that: 


(1) The business owns or rents personal property which must be moved in 
connection with such displacement and for which an expense would be incurred in 
such move; and the business vacates or relocates from its displacement site. 


(2) The business cannot be relocated without a substantial loss of its existing 
patronage (clientele or net earnings). 


(3) The business is not part of a commercial enterprise having more than three other 
establishments which are not being acquired by the County, and which are under the 
same ownership and are engaged in the same or similar business activity. 


(4) The business is not operated at a displacement dwelling solely for the purpose of 
renting such dwelling to others. 


(5) The business is not operated at the displacement site solely for the purpose of 
renting the site to others. 


(6) The business contributed materially to the operator’s income during the two (2) 
taxable years prior to the taxable year displacement occurs as follows: 


a. had average annual gross receipts of at least $5,000, or 


b. had average annual net earnings of at least $1,000, or 


c. contributed at least 33 1/3 percent to the operator’s average annual gross 
income from all sources. 


For the owner of a displaced farm operation to be entitled to this payment, the County must 
determine that: 


(1) The farm operation produces products or commodities in sufficient quantity to be 
capable of contributing materially (as defined in (6) above) to the operator’s support.  


(2) The farm operator was required by the acquisition to discontinue his entire farm 
operation at the present location or required to relocate the entire farm operation.  


(3) In the case of a partial acquisition of land which was a farm operation before the 
acquisition; the payment may be made if it is determined that: 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 


a. The acquisition of part of the land caused the operator to be displaced 
from the farm operation on the remaining land, or 


b. The partial acquisition caused a substantial change in the nature of the 
farm operation.  


For a nonprofit organization to be eligible for this payment, the County must determine that 
the nonprofit organization cannot be relocated without a substantial loss of its existing 
membership or clientele. 


Any payment in excess of $1,000.00 must be supported with financial statements for the 
two twelve-month periods prior to displacement. The amount to be used for any payment by 
the County is the average of two (2) years annual gross revenues less administrative 
expenses. 


(1) Payment Determination -Businesses And Farms 


The term “average annual net earnings” means one-half of any net earnings of the 
business or farm before Federal, State and local income taxes, during the two 
taxable years immediately preceding the taxable year in which the business is 
relocated. “Average annual net earnings” include any compensation paid by the 
business or farm to the owner, his spouse, or his dependents during the two-year 
period. Such earnings and compensation may be established by Federal income tax 
returns filed by the business or farm and its owner, his/her spouse, and their 
dependents during the two-year period. In the case of a corporate owner of a 
business or farm, earnings shall include any compensation paid to the spouse or 
dependent of the owner of a majority interest in the corporation. For the purpose of 
determining majority ownership, stock held by a husband, his wife and their 
dependent children shall be treated as one unit. 


(2) A Business or Farm Less Than Two Years 


If the business or farm was not in operation for the full two taxable years prior to 
displacement, net earnings shall be based on the actual period of operation at the 
displacement site during the two taxable years prior to displacement, projected to an 
annual rate. 


(3) Owner Must Provide Information 


For the owner of a business, farm, or nonprofit organization to be entitled to this 
payment, they must provide information to support the net earnings. City, County, 
State, or Federal Tax Returns or a certified financial statement prepared by a 
Certified Public Accountant (C.P.A.) for the tax years in question are the best source 
of this information and would be accepted, as evidence of earnings. 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 


A representative of the County will assist businesses, farm operations, nonprofit 
organizations and owners of other personal property in processing applications and 
claims.  


XIX. Replacement Housing Payments To Owners for Federal-aid  


If the County’s project is funded in whole or in part by federal-aid, displaced owner-occupants of a 
dwelling may receive payments for the additional costs necessary to purchase comparable 
replacement housing, compensation for the loss of favorable financing of the existing mortgage in 
the financing of replacement housing and reimbursement for certain closing costs incidental to the 
purchase of replacement housing.  


A “comparable dwelling” is one which, when compared with the dwelling being acquired, is (a) 
decent, safe and sanitary; (b) functionally equivalent with particular attention to the number of 
rooms and living space; (c) in an area not subjected to unreasonable adverse environmental 
conditions; (d) is not generally less desirable than the dwelling being acquired in regard to public 
utilities and public and commercial facilities; (e) reasonably accessible to the displacee’s place of 
employment; (f) on a site that is typical in size for residential development with normal site 
improvements including customary landscaping, excluding special improvements such as 
outbuildings, swimming pools and greenhouses; (g) available on the market; and (h) within the 
financial means of the displaced family or individual. 


A. Replacement Housing Payment 


The replacement housing payment is the difference, if any, between the amount finally paid 
for the property acquired and the actual cost which the owner paid for a comparable decent, 
safe and sanitary dwelling, or the amount determined by the County as necessary to 
purchase a comparable dwelling, whichever is less.  


B. Increased Mortgage Interest Costs 


A property owner will be reimbursed for increased interest costs if the interest rate on a new 
mortgage exceeds that of the present mortgage. The interest rate on the new mortgage used 
in determining the amount of the payment shall not exceed the prevailing fixed interest rate 
for conventional mortgages currently charged by mortgage lending institutions in the area in 
which the replacement dwelling is located. To be eligible, the acquired dwelling must have 
been encumbered by a bona fide mortgage which was a valid lien for at least 180 days prior 
to the initiation of negotiations and the mortgage was for the purchase of or improvements 
to the dwelling. 


The property owner may also be eligible for reimbursement of purchaser points and/or loan 
origination fees, when such fees are normal to real estate transaction in the area (payment 
will be based on the remaining balance of the mortgage on the acquired property). 


C. Closing Costs 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 


A property owner may also be reimbursed for other expenses such as reasonable costs 
incurred for title search, recording fees and certain other closing costs, but not including 
prepaid expenses such as real estate taxes and property insurance. 


XX. Owner Retains His Dwelling And Uses It As Replacement Dwelling 


It is possible for an owner to retain the present dwelling, move it from the right of way and 
use it for replacement housing. Please contact the County’s representative for details.  


XXI. Replacement Housing Payment Eligibility for Federal-aid Projects for Owner-
Occupant for 180 Days or More.   


To be eligible for replacement housing payments for a federal-aid project, the displacee must have 
owned and occupied the dwelling for not less than 180 consecutive days immediately prior to the 
first formal contact to acquire the property*. 


* Initiation of negotiations  


In addition, a property owner must purchase and occupy a decent, safe and sanitary replacement 
dwelling, within one year of the date of the move, receive final payment for the displacement 
dwelling or the date the required amount is deposited in court, whichever is later. 


Application for the replacement housing payment should be made as soon as possible after 
replacement housing is purchased and must be made on a form furnished by the County. The claim 
for payment must be filed within 18 months after date of displacement or date of final payment, 
whichever is later. 


Replacement dwellings must be decent, safe and sanitary. In brief, this means that the replacement 
dwelling conforms to State and Local building plumbing, electrical, housing and occupancy codes 
or ordinances, or in the absence of such codes it meets similar criteria established by the County. 
The County’s representative will furnish a copy of these requirements. The replacement dwelling 
must be inspected by a representative from the County to see that it meets these standards prior to 
payment. 


XXII. Inspection Should Be Made Before Any Agreement To Buy Or Rent Replacement 
Housing Is Made. 


In the event the replacement dwelling does not meet these standards, the displacee will be advised 
in writing of the deficiencies. It is not necessary to buy a comparable house in order to qualify for a 
supplemental payment, but the replacement dwelling must be decent, safe and sanitary. 


If a relocatee elects to construct a new replacement dwelling, the payment will be based on the cost 
of comparable housing as determined by the County or the cost of construction whichever is less. 


Upon request, the County will verify to any interested party the eligibility of the relocatee for 
Replacement Housing Payments and the amount of such payment. In addition, the replacement 
housing payment, closing costs and increased interest costs may be paid at the closing of the 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 
replacement dwelling. The County’s representative will advise a property owner of the County’s 
procedure. 


XXIII. Rental Payments - Down Payments for Federal-aid Projects  


Tenants, owners who prefer to rent, or owners who occupied their dwelling for less than 180 days 
prior to the initiation of negotiations may be entitled to a supplemental payment to assist them in 
renting a replacement dwelling if they occupied the property for at least 90 days prior to the 
initiation of negotiations. 


The payment will equal the difference, as determined by the County, between the cost of renting a 
comparable, decent, safe and sanitary dwelling and the actual or economic rent of the acquired 
property. The amount of rental payment is determined by subtracting 42 times the average rent 
being paid during the last three (3) months or the economic rent from the rental cost over forty two 
(42) months at the comparable property. Utilities will be included in the rental for the acquired 
property and the comparable replacement property when making this calculation. The rental 
payment will normally be paid in a lump sum unless the County determines otherwise. To qualify 
for the payment the property owner must rent and occupy a decent, safe and sanitary dwelling 
within twelve (12) months of the date of the move, and claim for payment must be filed within 
eighteen (18) months of the date of the move.  


If a sleeping room is rented, the supplemental rent payment, if any, will be based on the rent for a 
comparable sleeping room. The standards of being decent, safe and sanitary will apply; however, a 
kitchen area need not be provided. Lavatory and toilet facilities must be provided including a door 
for privacy which can be locked. 


A tenant and short term owner may elect to purchase replacement housing. In that event, they may 
qualify for a down payment on a comparable decent, safe and sanitary dwelling if the County has 
determined, computed and has made the displacee a rental supplement payment offer. 


The displacee does not qualify for a down payment assistance amount if he/she was not eligible to 
receive a rent supplement payment amount. The down payment replacement housing payment is 
not to exceed the amount of the rent supplement, if any, described above including closing costs 
(Election to purchase must be made within twelve (12) months of the date moved, when converting 
a rent supplement to down payment.) 


XXIV. Mobile Homes 


Occupants of mobile homes are basically entitled to the same moving and replacement housing 
payments as occupants of a conventional dwelling.  


The various choices and combinations of payments are too numerous to list; however, relocatees 
who occupy a mobile home will be contacted and advised of the choices, amounts and procedures 
to claim the moving cost and replacement housing payments.  


XXV. Subsequent Occupants 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 
Persons in occupancy when property is acquired by the County, but who do not qualify as either a 
180 day or 90 day occupant prior to the initiation of negotiations, are eligible for advisory services 
and reimbursement of moving expenses. Also, they may be eligible for financial assistance in 
obtaining replacement housing if comparable housing is not available within their financial means. 


XXVI. Replacement Housing Payments In The Event Of Condemnation 


Since replacement housing payments are determined partially from the amount paid by the County 
for the property acquired, a final determination of payment due cannot be made in the event of 
condemnation until the condemnation has been settled. The replacement housing payment will be 
recomputed based on the verdict by the court compared to the actual price paid for replacement 
property, or the amount determined by the County necessary to acquire a comparable decent, safe 
and sanitary dwelling, whichever is less.  


An advance payment may be made by the County pending the final determination of 
condemnation. Such payment would be limited to the amount determined by the County. The 
owner must execute a promissory note and Deed to Secure Debt in the amount of the advance 
payment on the replacement property before an advance payment is made. Should the 
recomputation of benefits due result in a decrease of payment, the difference would have to be 
refunded to the County. Should the recomputed benefits result in an increase the additional 
payment will be made by the County.  


XXVII. Effects Of Relocation Assistance Benefits On Income 


No relocation payment received will be considered as income for the purpose of the Internal 
Revenue Code or for the purposes of determining eligibility or the extent of eligibility of 
any person for assistance under the Social Security Act or any other Federal law. 


XXVIII. Appeals 


(Relocation Assistance & Incidental Expenses) 


Any disagreement on eligibility for, or the amounts of, relocation payments and expenses to 
transfer title to the County may be appealed. An appeal should be made as soon as a person is 
aggrieved, but the latest an appeal may be filed is twelve (12) months from the date a written 
notification of the County’s determination of eligibility or amounts of payment was received. 


The appeal will be handled by the County in accordance with Federal law (42 USC 4601 et seq.) in 
the following manner:  


1. Upon receipt of the appeal all determinations of benefits will be administratively 
reviewed by the County’s public works director. Prompt notification of the results of the 
County review will be provided. 


2. If, after the County’s review, a further review is desired, a request in writing must be 
made to the board of commissioners. 







FAYETTE COUNTY                  
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 


3. If the decision of the board of commissioners is unsatisfactory to the Appellant or the 
County, either party may appeal that decision via a writ of certiorari to the Superior Court 
of Fayette County within 30 days of the board of commissioners’ decision. 


In the event the property being acquired by the County is pending final judgment due to 
condemnation and the appeal pertains to the cost of replacement housing, the appeal 
findings will only determine the cost of replacement housing. No payment can be 
determined until final judgment at which time the County will use this cost in computing 
the amount of Replacement Housing Payment. 


XXIX. 1968 Fair Housing Law 


In Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (the Fair Housing Law), Congress declared a 
national policy of providing fair housing throughout the United States. This law and later 
Acts and amendments make discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, or national 
origin illegal in connection with the sale or rental of most housing and any vacant land 
offered for residential construction or use. 


XXX. The Americans With Disabilities Act Of 1992 


The Americans with Disabilities Act, of 1992 requires non-discrimination on the basis of 
Disability in State and Local Government Services. Therefore, no individual with a 
disability shall, by reason of such disability, be excluded from participation in or be denied 
the benefits of the service or activities of a public entity or be subjected to discrimination by 
any such entity.  


XXXI. Control of Right Of Way 


Right of Way conveyed to the County for public road purposes must be utilized for that purpose 
exclusively, except such encroachments as may be permissible by permit from the County. The 
adjacent land owner or other individuals are not permitted to use the right of way for permanent 
parking, storage of materials, display of merchandise, erection of signs, fences, or other structures. 
Prior to planning construction adjacent to the right of way, the owner should contact the County. 
On Limited Access Projects, no entrances are permissible across the limited access right of way. 


XXXII. Environmental Law 


The purchase of property by the County does not limit Environmental responsibility of either the 
Grantee of Grantor under Federal 40 CFR 280.12 or other applicable State or Federal 
Environmental Laws. 





		Commissioners- Acquisition of Property Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Acquisition of Property Backup






Board of Commissioners Workshop, July 6, 2011 
 


Agenda Item:  Consideration of a proposed Ordinance which addresses the 
procedures, decorum and rules of order used for conducting County 
Commission meetings. 
 


• The preamble to the ordinance declares, “Public participation and access to the governmental 
decision-making process is a key element of our democratic system.”  I agree with the 
statement; however, certain components of this ordinance that I believe infringe upon the First 
Amendment rights of our citizens through mechanisms that are both arbitrary and capricious. 


 


• I also have a problem with the awkward structure and syntax used throughout the document. 
 


• Horgan in favor or preregistration with public comment 
 


• Section 2-44 Rules of Order, (h), subsection (b).  [NOTE: those subsections should be 
numbered]  Under public discussion, “The right of a member of the public to discuss a matter 
before the board shall be limited to three (3) minutes per topic, unless as otherwise as 
otherwise granted by special permission of the chairman”   (reference p. 9). This is in conflict 
with Section 2-54 subsection (b) granting individuals five minutes to make comments 
(reference p. 14).  What is the distinction between the allowance of three minutes of “public 
discussion” and five minutes of “public comment” and, truth be told, giving a concerned citizen 
only three minutes is tantamount to saying expedience is paramount to legitimate public 
opinion.  We would give a subject matter expert only 3 minutes? Scott Bennett: “The 
person who comes up for public comment normally speaks on multiple subjects.”  
Frady says leave as is, but no one else speaks up. 
 


• Section 2-51 Decorum.  “The purpose of the meetings of the board of commissioners is to 
conduct the county’s business” (reference p. 11).  Georgia House of Representatives Ethics 
Chairman Joe Wilkinson, a Republican from Sandy Springs, wisely told the AJC in the July 3 
edition, “The public officials should never forget that they work for the citizens.  They are our 
bosses and they should know what we are doing.”  Change the words “county business” 
should be changed to “the business of the citizens of Fayette County.”  SEE pages/file on 
“people’s business” No comments from other commissioners. 
 


• Section 2-51 Decorum.  “They [meetings] are not a forum to belittle, ridicule or embarrass 
county commissioners, other county officials, county employees, or others,” (reference p. 11).  
This is arbitrary and there are no specific definitions of the terms “belittle,” “ridicule,” or 
“embarrass” within our ordinance.  For example, if a local citizen approaches the Board of 
Commissioners and expresses disappointment in an elected official for being convicted of a 
crime while holding office, the comments could embarrass the official in question.  However, 
the statement is factual, a matter of judicial public record and a legitimate concern for the 
voting public.  Such restrictions on the First Amendment of the U.S. Constitution are an abuse 
of power with the official(s) suppressing free speech.  Our great statesman President Harry 
Truman said it best, “If you can’t stand the heat, get out of the kitchen.”  Frady agrees. 
McCarty agrees. 
 







• Section 2-51 (a) subsection (4) Decorum.  “Commissioners should not … check … other 
internet sites during a meeting” (reference p. 11).  We have had two recent examples where 
the county attorney and a citizen in the audience have looked up material relevant to an 
agenda item on the Internet during a meeting which is cited in the public record.  We do not 
need to be censoring the activities of the commissioners.  If someone wants to look up a 
reference, let them do it. Scott Bennett: “I don’t think it means you shouldn’t look up 
something that is official business.”  Steve Brown: “It says you shouldn’t use the 
Internet.”  Herb Frady: “If you need to look something up that is official business, the 
board is going to let you look it up.”  SO WHY IS THIS CLAUSE IN THE ORDINANCE? No 
commissioners cited an opinion one way or the other. 
 


• Section 2-51 (a) subsection (10) Decorum.  “Personal attacks and inappropriate remarks shall 
be ruled out of order by the Chair.  Commissioners may not use commission meetings to make 
derogatory comments about particular employees or to air their personal grievances with other 
commissioners” (reference p. 12).  What is the definition of “personal attacks, inappropriate 
remarks, derogatory comments and personal grievances” in our ordinance?  This is arbitrary 
and capricious.  An example is two members of this board made false statements about me in 
the public forum claiming I had reneged on a position concerning a matter before the board.  
However, when I attempted to cite the extensive public record proving them incorrect, I was 
censored by the Chair merely because he did not want the issue exposed.  Any person who 
cannot stand to have the truth revealed in public, especially meeting minutes and official 
records, does not need to be holding public office.  Steve Brown: “We are micromanaging 
personal behavior.”  Herb Frady: “I still agree with that” (after Brown cites the Harry 
Truman quote again. McCarty agrees.   
 


• Section 2-51 (a) subsection (13) Decorum.  “Commissioners shall not confront other board 
members, department heads, employees or other officials in an accusatory manner” (reference 
p. 12).  This is another attempt at controlling free speech.  What is the definition of “accusatory 
manner” in this ordinance?  If a commissioner has evidence or other knowledge of a breach of 
county policy and procedure or unlawful acts, that person is duty bound to bring that 
information to the public forum.  For example, when the board members of the Smith 
administration conducted an illegal board meeting and discussed county business, I had no 
choice but to accuse the offenders of wrong doing.  That act would now be covered up.  
Besides, if a commissioner, department head or employee feels the particular comments 
amount to slander or libel, they can pursue the matter in the courts.  No opinions given by 
the other board members. 
 


• Section 2-51 (a) subsection (14) Decorum.  In regard to raising a point of order, “The Chair 
may rule on the question or may allow the board to debate the issue and decide by majority 
vote of those members present” (reference p. 12).  This section is in direct conflict with Section 
2-54 (b) stating, “Any point of order raised by a commissioner other than the Chair shall be 
ruled on by a majority vote of the board” (reference p. 14).  Steve Brown: “In each case a 
commissioner calls a point of order.”  Lee Hearn and Herb Frady agrees.  Make them 
match.  Have a vote on a point of order.  
 


• Section 2-51 (b) subsection (8) change the word “shall” to “should” to align with Section 2-51 
(a) subsection (16) Decorum.  “Commissioners should keep an open mind on all issues 







coming before the board” (reference p. 12).  The use of shall is totally frivolous and totally 
unenforceable.  Hearn and McCarty say change “shall” to “should.” 
 


• Section 2-51 (b) subsection (2) Conduct of the Chair or Presiding Officer. “The Chair or 
presiding officer shall rule out of order any discussion on topics other than the motion being 
discussed” (reference p. 12).  On two separate occasions, I have been called out of order by 
the Chairman for using traditional rhetorical devices, specifically analogies, compares two 
things, which are alike in several respects, for the purpose of explaining or clarifying idea or 
process.  If the Chairman fails to grasp these devices, do we really want him ruling on such 
things? Scott Bennett’s suggestion: if the chairman calls someone out of order and 
some commissioner objects, then we would have a vote of the board. The discussion 
centered around one person talking over another person; however, the subsection is 
specifically referring to “topics other than the motion being discussed” and my specific 
point was being allowed to use standard rhetorical devices without being punished.  
Scott Bennett: “The board regulates itself.”  
 


• Section 2-51 (b) subsection (4) Conduct of the Chair or Presiding Officer.   “… personal 
attacks, breaches of the rules of decorum and inappropriate remarks” of who? - whatever 
those are. (reference p. 13) Scott Bennett:  “the Board should regulate itself.”  Bennett 
did not address censorship and such capricious actions. 
 


• Section 2-51 (b) subsections (5), (6), (7) and (8) Conduct of the Chair or Presiding Officer. All 
of these are weak and unsound for reasons I mentioned above (reference p. 13). 
 


• Section 2-51 (c) subsection (6) Conduct of Members of the Public in Meetings Generally.  The 
very title of the subsection using the term “generally” means not always the case.  “Personal 
attacks and derogatory or inappropriate remarks are not permitted” (reference p. 14).  The 
definition of what constitutes a personal attack, or derogatory remark is left solely up the 
personal whims of the Chairman.  This arbitrary control of free speech can be used as weapon 
by the Chairman against public opposition as he can deem anything he likes as a personal 
attack or derogatory comment.  Brown cited Harry Truman quote and Frady agreed. 
McCarty agrees. 
  


• Section 2-54 (b) Public Participation.  “All members of the public wishing to address the board 
shall submit their name and the topic of their comments to the county clerk at least fifteen 
minutes before the beginning of the meeting” (reference p. 14).  I have to ask why is this 
necessary?  This is just another technique to limit free speech at public meetings with the 
people not making it in time not being allowed to express themselves.  People currently have 
to record their name prior to speaking and that is fine.  I oppose restricting free speech. No 
comments either way from other commissioners. 
 


• Section 2-56 (a) Minutes.  “In the case of a roll call vote …” (reference p. 14).  There is no 
provision for a roll call vote in the ordinance.  Scott Bennett: “We will change that so it 
doesn’t say ‘roll call’. 
 


 







• Section 2-58 Committees.  Instead of a “concurrence of the board” which can be inaccurate 
and misinterpreted, the Chairman should act upon a motion including the specific purpose of 
the committee and any limitations after receiving a majority vote of the board.  (reference p. 
15) 







1 
 


STATE OF GEORGIA; 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE 
COUNTY, GEORGIA CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; TO PROVIDE FOR 
ETHICAL STANDARDS; TO PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE 
FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; TO REPEAL 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO 
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
ALLOWED BY LAW. 


 


WHEREAS, well-organized meetings allow a board of commissioners to reach decisions 
in a fair and consistent manner; 


WHEREAS, efficiency is served when the process of planning for and conducting public 
meetings is clearly stated and understood by public officials and citizens; and 


WHEREAS, public participation and access to the governmental decision-making 
process is a key element of our democratic system;  


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 


GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 
Section 1.  That Division II of Article II Board of Commissioners, of Chapter 2 Administration 
of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette County, Georgia is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced 
to read as follows: 
 


Sec. 2-36. Open Meetings.   


All meetings of the board of commissioners shall be held in accordance 
with the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 50-14-1 et seq. The public shall at all times be 
afforded access to all meetings other than executive sessions. 


Sec. 2-37. Executive Sessions.  


(a) As provided below or in accordance with Georgia law, the board may 
close a portion of a meeting to the public to discuss certain topics that are 
exempted from the Open Meetings Law. Such meetings shall be referred to as 
executive sessions. Any portion of the meeting not subject to any exemptions 
authorized by law shall be open to the public. 


(b)  Executive Sessions. Executive sessions of the board may be held for the 
purpose of discussing topics exempted from public access requirements by 
O.C.G.A. §§ 50-14-2 and 50-14-3, including, but not limited to: 







2 
 


(1) Pending or Potential Litigation. The board may close an open meeting 
to discuss topics subject to the attorney client privilege to the extent the 
commissioners consult and meet with the county attorney or other legal 
counsel to discuss pending or potential litigation, settlement, claims, 
administrative proceedings or other judicial actions brought by or against 
the county, a county official or employee. The county attorney or other 
attorney representing the county must be present in the executive session. 
In order to close a meeting because of potential litigation, there must be a 
real and tangible threat of legal action indicated by a formal demand letter 
or other writing presenting a claim or a sincere intention to sue, previous 
or pre-existing litigation between the county and the other party or the 
hiring of an attorney by the threatening party. 


(2) Personnel Matters. The board may close an open meeting to discuss or 
deliberate on the appointment, employment, compensation, hiring, 
disciplinary action, dismissal or evaluation of a county official or 
employee except that the commissioners must receive evidence or hear 
arguments on proposed disciplinary action or dismissal of a county official 
or employee in an open meeting. Any votes by the board must be taken in 
an open meeting and be entered in the minutes of the open meeting. 


(3) Real Estate Acquisition by the County. The board may close an open 
meeting to discuss the future purchase of real estate. The board is required 
to keep minutes of an executive session held to discuss the acquisition of 
real estate as provided in paragraph (1) of subsection (f) of Section 2 of 
this ordinance. 


(4) Records that Could Compromise Public Security. The board may close 
an open meeting to review or discuss records that, if made public, would 
endanger life, safety or public property by compromising security against 
sabotage, criminal acts or terrorist acts. Such records include, but are not 
limited to, security plans, vulnerability assessments for public buildings or 
facilities, anti-terrorist plans, plans or blueprints that reveal security 
devices or otherwise compromise security and contingency plans for 
meetings. 


(c)  Procedure for Entering into Executive Sessions. An executive session shall 
not be held except pursuant to a majority affirmative vote of the board members 
present taken in an open meeting. The minutes of the open meeting shall reflect 
the names of the commissioners present, those voting for the executive session, 
and the specific reasons for the executive session. 


(d)  Who Can Attend Executive Sessions. Board members and only individuals 
necessary to conduct an executive session may be present. The clerk of the board 
of commissioners and the county administrator shall be included in any executive 
session approved by the board of commissioners unless expressly barred by 
majority vote of the board members present prior to or during the course of an 







3 
 


executive session.  The county attorney or other attorney representing the board 
must be included in any executive session pertaining to litigation or claims against 
the county. Other individuals may be invited to participate in an executive session 
by majority vote of the board members present prior to or during the course of the 
executive session but only if the presence of such individuals is consistent with 
the applicable exception authorizing the executive session.  No other individuals 
shall be permitted in the executive session. 


(e)  Non-Exempt Topics. If a commissioner or any other person in an 
executive session attempts to discuss a non-exempt topic during an executive 
session, the Chair shall immediately rule that commissioner or other person out of 
order and such discussion shall cease. If the commissioner or other person persists 
in discussing the non-exempt topic, the Chair shall either cause the person or 
commissioner to be removed from the executive session or adjourn the meeting 
immediately. 


(f)  Executive Session Minutes. 


(1) Executive Sessions Discussing Real Estate Acquisition. Minutes of an 
executive session in which the acquisition of real estate is discussed shall 
be taken in the same manner as minutes of an open meeting and shall be 
made available for public inspection except that any portion of the minutes 
identifying the real estate shall be redacted until such time as the 
acquisition of the real estate has been completed, terminated, abandoned 
or until court proceedings have been initiated.  


(2) Other Executive Sessions. Minutes of executive sessions devoted to 
any topic other than land acquisition may be taken and maintained by the 
clerk at the direction of the Chair. Any such minutes shall be maintained 
in a confidential file and shall not be subject to disclosure. 


(g)  Chair or Presiding Officer Affidavit. The Chair or other presiding officer 
shall execute an affidavit stating, under oath, that the executive session was 
devoted to topics exempt from the public access requirements. The affidavit shall 
include the specific exemption to the Open Meetings Law. The affidavit shall be 
notarized and filed with the minutes of the open meeting. 


(h)  Discussion of Executive Session Business. Commissioners, officials, 
employees and other individuals who attend executive sessions are prohibited 
from discussing or in any other way disclosing confidential information, legal 
advice and/or legal strategy discussed in the executive session unless: 


(1) The disclosure is required by law; 


(2) The disclosure is part of a judicial or administrative proceeding; or 


(3) Three members of the board authorizes the disclosure.  







4 
 


In no way shall this subsection prevent a county attorney or other attorney 
representing the board from discussing any matters discussed in executive session 
relative to settlement or negotiation of a lawsuit or other claim against the county. 
Any commissioner that divulges has previously divulged or has threatened to 
divulge confidential information, legal advice or strategy discussion may be 
excluded from participation in an executive session by affirmative vote of three 
commissioners. A commissioner that divulges confidential information, legal 
advice, or strategy discussions may be a publicly sanctioned by a majority 
affirmative vote of the board of commissioners. 


Sec. 2-38.  Visual and Sound Recordings.  


Visual, sound, and visual and sound recordings shall be permitted for all 
open meetings. 


Sec. 2-39. Quorum.  


(a) A quorum must be present for conducting meetings of the board. A 
quorum is a majority of all of the members of the board then in office. It is the 
duty of the Chair to enforce this rule. 


(b) Any commissioner may raise a point of order directed to the Chair if he or 
she believes that a quorum is not present. If, during the course of a meeting, a 
commissioner or commissioners leave and a quorum no longer exists, the meeting 
may not continue. If a quorum is not attained within thirty minutes, the meeting 
may be rescheduled by the Chair with the approval of a majority of the 
commissioners present.  
 
(c) No official action shall be taken except upon the affirmative vote of at 
least three members of the commission unless otherwise specified herein. The 
chairman shall be entitled to the same voting rights as other members of the board 
of commissioners on questions considered by the commission.  
 
Sec. 2-40. Chair.  
 
(a) The Chair shall be appointed at the first meeting of each year.  The county 
attorney shall call the first meeting to order and call for nominations for the Chair 
as the first order of business.  After receiving nominations, the county attorney 
shall ask for a motion to appoint the Chair.  The motion to appoint the Chair 
requires a second prior to a vote.  If a motion to appoint the Chair fails, the county 
attorney shall call for additional motions until a Chair is selected.  
 
(b) The Chair of the board of commissioners, as presiding officer, is 
responsible for the orderly conduct of the meeting. In order to fulfill this duty, the 
Chair shall enforce the rules of procedure that are adopted by the board of 
commissioners. The Chair shall be impartial and conduct the meetings in a fair 
manner. The Chair may introduce motions or second motions. 







5 
 


 


Sec. 2-41. Vice-Chair.  


The board shall select a vice-Chair from the board members at the beginning of 
each calendar year. The vice-Chair shall fulfill the duties of the Chair if the Chair 
is not in attendance. The motion to appoint the vice-Chair requires a second prior 
to a vote. 


Section 2-42. Presiding Officer.  


If the Chair and the vice-Chair are absent or otherwise unable to serve as 
presiding officer at a meeting and a quorum of commissioners is present, the 
remaining commissioners shall select a commissioner to serve as presiding officer 
of the meeting until either the Chair or vice-Chair is present at the meeting. 


Section 2-43. Parliamentarian. The county attorney shall serve as the 
parliamentarian for board meetings. 


Section 2-44. Rules of Order.  


(a)  Call to order.  If, at the time of a meeting, the chairman determines that all 
commissioners have been notified or an attempt has been made to notify all 
commissioners and that a quorum of the board of commissioners is present, he 
shall have the authority to call the meeting to order. The call to order shall not 
require any preceding action but may be issued solely by the authority of the 
chairman.  
 
(b)  Motions—General requirement.  The board of commissioners can take 
action only when a motion to take such action is made and passed by the board.  
 


(1)  Procedure. 
 


a. Before a motion can be discussed or voted upon by the board of 
commissioners, it must be presented to the board by a member of 
the board. The presentment is made by merely stating the motion.  
 
b. Immediately after the motion is presented to the board, the 
chairman shall ask for a commissioner to second the motion. If the 
motion is not seconded, it shall fail for lack of a second and can 
not be remade until the next meeting of the board, except as 
otherwise provided herein.  
 
c. If the motion is seconded, the chairman shall immediately ask 
for discussion of the motion. Discussion of the motion shall be 
limited to the board of commissioners and shall relate solely to the 
motion on hand; however, any commissioner may question a 







6 
 


member of the audience or staff provided such question shall 
pertain strictly to the motion on hand.  
 
d. Upon the conclusion of discussion, the chairman shall cause the 
motion to be restated and shall then call the question. 
 


(2)  Amendment. 
 


a. An amendment may be suggested by any member of the board. 
The amendment shall be suggested only during the discussion of 
the original motion.  
 
b. A motion can be amended only with the consent of the 
commissioner making the motion. If the commissioner who 
seconded the original motion disagrees with the amendment, he 
shall be allowed to withdraw his second. When a second is 
withdrawn, the chairman shall immediately request a new second 
to the amended motion.  
 
c. After a motion is amended and seconded, the chairman shall call 
for discussion and proceed with the consideration of the motion in 
the manner provided above.  
 


(3)  Withdrawal. 
 


a. Any motion may be withdrawn at the discretion of the 
commissioner making the motion. 
 
b. Motions may be withdrawn at any time prior to but not during 
nor after the restating of the motion by the chairman. 
 


(4)  Tabling. 
 


a. During the discussion of a motion, the motion may be tabled for 
further discussion by the board upon the motion of any 
commissioner other than the commissioner who made the original 
motion.  


 
b. The motion to table shall specify the time and place for the 
continued discussion. 
 
c. Discussion of the original motion shall immediately cease when 
a motion to table is made. 


 
d. A motion to table shall not require a second but shall require 
discussion, restating the motion and a call of the question. 







7 
 


 
(5) Reconsideration. 


 
a. A motion, which has been passed or defeated, or which fails for 
lack of a second, may be reconsidered by the board of 
commissioners during the same meeting provided the board pass a 
motion for reconsideration. Otherwise, the original motion may not 
be presented to the board again until its next meeting.  


 
b. A motion for reconsideration can only be made by a 
commissioner who voted against the original motion, if defeated, 
or in favor of the original motion, if passed. Otherwise, any 
commissioner may make a motion for reconsideration.  


 
(6)   Vote. 


 
a. A commissioner in favor of a motion shall say “aye” while 
holding up his/her right hand. 
 
b. A commissioner against a motion shall say “nay” while holding 
up his/her right hand. 
 
c. A commissioner present but refusing to vote shall be recorded as 
abstaining. 
 
d. A unanimous passing vote shall mean a vote in which all 
members of the board of commissioners present vote in favor of 
the motion.  
 


(c)   Ordinances. The passage of all ordinances must be accomplished by 
motion.  
 
(d)   Special motions – Call the question. 
 


(1)  During the discussion of any motion, any commissioner may move to 
call the question in order to end discussion and have the vote on the 
pending motion.  


 
(2)  When a commissioner has moved to call the question, discussion of 
the original motion shall cease and the chairman shall immediately restate 
the motion and then proceed with a vote on whether to call the question. A 
second of a motion to call the question shall not be necessary.  


 
(3)  If the vote is in favor of the motion to call the question, the chairman 
shall immediately call the question on the original motion.  


 







8 
 


(4)  If the vote is against the motion to call the question, discussion of the 
original motion shall continue. 


 
(e)   Point of order. 
 


(1)  Whenever a commissioner has a question as to the procedure being 
followed by the chairman, he may raise a point of order. A point of order 
requires no second.  
 
(2)  Upon the raising of a point of order, the chairman shall stop the 
meeting and the commissioner shall state his question. The meeting shall 
continue after a determination of the question has been rendered by a 
majority vote of the members in attendance at the meeting.  


 
(f)   Out of order. 
 


(1)  The chairman shall have the authority to cite any individual out of 
order when that individual, in the opinion of the chairman, violates these 
rules of procedure.  
 
(2)  No other action shall be required in citing an individual out of order. 
 
(3)  When an individual has been cited as out of order, the chairman shall 
state the reasons therefor and shall give the individual directions regarding 
compliance with these rules.  
 
(4)  If a commissioner believes that the chairman has inappropriately cited 
an individual as out of order, the commissioner may raise a point of order. 
 


(g)   Adjournment. 
 


(1)  Adjournment of the meeting must be by motion. 
 
(2)  A motion to adjourn does not require a second but does require 
discussion. 
 
(3)  When a motion to adjourn is passed, the board of commissioners can 
no longer act until another meeting is called to order. 
 


(h)   Public discussion. 
 


(a)  Whenever public discussion of a matter before the board of 
commissioners is allowed, any member of the public shall have the right 
to discuss the matter at hand prior to the presentment of the motion.  
 







9 
 


(b)  The right of a member of the public to discuss a matter before the 
board shall be limited to three five (35) minutes per topic, unless as 
otherwise granted by special permission of the chairman.  
 
(c)  All discussion shall relate solely to the matter at hand. 
 


(i)  Vice-chairman references.  All references in this division to chairman shall 
also include the vice-chairman when the vice-chairman is conducting the meeting.   
 
(j)  Action chart.  Actions shall be taken on motions as follows: 
 


 


Section 2-45. Suspending the Rules of Order.  


Rules of procedure may be suspended in the case of an emergency. A 
motion to suspend the rules requires a second, is debatable, and requires three 
votes of the board. Rules governing quorums, voting methods and requirements, 
notification to commissioners of meetings and rules necessary for compliance 
with state law may not be suspended; provided, however, that, in the event that a 
state of emergency is declared by the Governor or other authorized state official, 
the board may waive time-consuming procedures and formalities imposed by state 
law. 


Section 2-46. Regular Meetings.  


The board of commissioners shall establish a schedule for regular 
meetings at its first meeting of each year.  The schedule shall state the time and 
place for each meeting.  A notice containing the foregoing information shall be 
posted and maintained in a conspicuous place available to the general public at 
the regular meeting place of the board.  


Type Second Discussion Vote Priority 


Regular motion x x x None 


Amendment x x x None 


Withdrawal of 
motion 


None None None x 


Table None x x x 


Reconsideration x x x x 


Call the question None None x x 


Point of order None x None x 


Out of order None x None x 


Adjournment None x x None 







10 
 


Section 2-47. Meetings Other Than Regular Meetings.  


(a)   The board may meet at times and locations other than those regularly 
scheduled meetings. 


(b)   Special Meetings and Rescheduled Regular Meetings.   A regular meeting 
may be canceled, rescheduled or moved to a new location within the county site 
by the Chair for any reason.  Other special meetings may be scheduled by the 
Chair or at the request of at least two commissioners. Whenever a rescheduled 
regular meeting or any other special meeting is to be held at a time or place other 
than the regularly scheduled time or place, written notice of the change shall be 
posted for at least 24 hours at the regular meeting place. In addition, written or 
oral notice shall be given by the clerk at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting 
to either the legal organ of the county or a newspaper having general circulation at 
least equal to that of the legal organ, as well as to each member of the county 
governing authority. 


(c)   Meetings with Less Than 24 Hours Notice. When emergency 
circumstances occur, the board may hold a meeting with less than 24 hours notice 
to the public. When such meetings are to be held, the clerk shall provide notice to 
the legal organ of the county or a newspaper with a general circulation at least 
equal to that of the legal organ and to each member of the county governing 
authority as soon as possible. The notice shall include the subjects expected to be 
considered at the meeting. In addition, the minutes shall reflect the reason for the 
emergency meeting and the nature of the notice given to the media. 


(d)  Meetings during a State of Emergency. When it is imprudent, inexpedient or 
impossible to hold board meetings at the regular meeting place due to emergency 
or disaster resulting from manmade or natural causes, as declared by the Governor 
or other authorized state official, the board may meet anywhere within or outside 
of the county.  Such a meeting may be called by the Chair or by any two 
commissioners. At the meeting, the commissioners shall establish and designate 
emergency temporary meeting locations where public business may be transacted 
during the emergency. Any action taken in such meetings shall have the same 
effect as if performed at the regular meeting site. 


Section 2-48. Order of Business. All regular board meetings shall substantially 
follow an established order of business. The order shall be is as follows: 


I. Call to order 


II.  Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 


III. Acceptance of Agenda 


IV.   Recognitions, Proclamations, and Awards 


 V.   Public Hearings 







11 
 


VI.   Public Comment 


VII . Consent agenda 


VIII.  Old business 


IX.  New business 


X.  Reports (Administrator, Attorney, Departments, Board Members) 


XI.   Executive Session 


XII.  Adjournment 


Section 2-49. Agenda.  


The Agenda shall be prepared in accordance with the Fayette County 
Policies and Procedures Manual. 


Section 2-50. Consent Agenda.  


A consent agenda may be prepared by the county administrator for the 
board to unanimously adopt on routine items. Any items of business that are 
expected to receive unanimous approval without debate may be placed on a 
consent agenda. If a commissioner objects to an item being on the consent 
agenda, the Chair shall move that particular item to the regular agenda.  The Chair 
may ask for unanimous approval of the items on the consent agenda. If there are 
no objections, all the items on the consent agenda shall be approved by a vote of 
three members of the board. 


Section 2-51. Decorum.  


The Chair shall enforce the rules of decorum. The purpose of meetings of 
the board of commissioners is to conduct the business of the citizens of Fayette 
County the county’s business. Meetings shall be conducted in an orderly and 
respectful fashion. They are not a forum to belittle, ridicule or embarrass county 
commissioners, other county officials, county employees, or others.Elected 
officials, county employees and citizens shall behave in considerate and polite 
manner at all meetings. 


(a)  Conduct of Members of the Board of Commissioners. 


(1) Commissioners should arrive on time for a meeting and be prepared. 


(2) Commissioners should attend the entire meeting. 


(3) Cell phones or other communications devices shall be turned off or in 
silent mode. 


Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman







12 
 


 (4) Commissioners should not take phone calls or check emails, social 
networking sites, chat rooms or other internet sites during a meeting. 


(5) Commissioners shall conduct themselves in a professional and 
respectful manner.  


(6) Commissioners desiring to speak must first be recognized by the Chair. 


(7) Commissioners may only address the motion that is being discussed. 


(8) Commissioners shall direct their remarks to the Chair and not to 
individual commissioners, staff, or citizens in attendance. 


(9) Only one commissioner at a time is permitted to speak. Commissioners 
shall not interrupt any other person who has the floor. 


 (10) Personal attacks and inappropriate remarks shall be ruled out of order 
by the Chair. Commissioners may not use commission meetings to make 
derogatory comments about particular employees or to air their personal 
grievances with other commissioners. 


(11) There shall be no use of profanity during the meeting. 


(12) Remarks may not address the character of the person involved. 


 (13) Commissioners shall not confront other board members, department 
heads, employees or other officials in an accusatory manner. 


(14) Commissioners may raise a point of order if a rule is believed to have 
been broken. A second is not required. The Chair may rule on the question 
or may allow the board to debate the issue and decide by majority vote of 
those members presentshall be ruled on by a majority vote of the board. 


(15) While commissioners may not agree with all decisions of the board, 
all commissioners shall recognize the validity of any lawful action 
approved by the board. Commissioners shall not refuse to sign any 
ordinance, resolution, contract or other document because he or she did 
not vote for the action taken. 


(16) Commissioners should keep an open mind on all issues coming 
before the board. 


(b)  Conduct of the Chair or Presiding Officer. In addition to rules of decorum 
applicable to commissioners generally, the following rules shall apply to the Chair 
or presiding officer: 


(1) The Chair or presiding officer shall recognize any commissioner who 
has the right to speak. 


Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman







13 
 


(2) The Chair or presiding officer shall rule out of order any discussion on 
topics other than the motion being discussed. 


(3) The Chair or presiding officer shall only permit one commissioner at a 
time to speak. 


 (4) Personal attacks, breaches of the rules of decorum and inappropriate 
remarks shall be ruled out of order by the vice-Chair or presiding officer. 


 (5) The Chair or presiding officer shall not confront other board members, 
department heads, employees or other officials in an accusatory manner. 


(6) While the Chair or presiding officer may not agree with all decisions 
of the board, he or she shall recognize the validity of any lawful action 
approved by the board. 


(7)  The Chair or presiding officer shall not refuse to sign any ordinance, 
resolution, contract or other document because he or she did not vote for 
the action taken. 


(8) The Chair or presiding officer shall should keep an open mind on all 
issues coming before the board. 


(c)  Conduct of Members of the Public in Meetings Generally. 


(1) All cell phones and other communication devices shall be turned off or 
in silent mode; provided, however, that a cell phone or device may be used 
to make a video or audio recording of the meeting. 


(2) All meeting attendees must be silent during the meeting while business 
is conducted. 


(3) Anyone wishing to speak must first be recognized by the Chair. 


(4) All comments must be directed to the Chair and not to individual 
commissioners, staff or others. 


(5) All meeting attendees must conduct themselves in a respectful manner. 


 (6) Personal attacks and derogatory or inappropriate remarks are not 
permitted. 


(7) There shall be no use of profanity during the meeting. 


Section 2-52. Voting.  


Passage of a motion shall require the affirmative vote of a three 
commissioners and voting at a meeting at which a quorum is present.   







14 
 


Section 2-53. Abstentions.  


A commissioner shall vote on all motions unless he or she has a conflict of 
interest preventing him or her from making a decision in a fair and legal manner. 
If a conflict of interest does exist, the commissioner shall explain for the record 
his or her decision to abstain on any vote.  


Section 2-54. Public Participation.  


Public participation in meetings of the board of commissioners shall be 
permitted in accordance with the provisions of this section. 


(a)  Public Hearings. Advertised hearings on zoning matters, including 
zoning map and ordinance text amendments shall be governed in 
accordance with the zoning policies and procedures adopted by the board 
of commissioners. 


(b)  Public Comment.  All members of the public wishing to address 
the board shall submit their name and the topic of their comments to the 
county clerk at least fifteen minutes before the beginning of the meeting 
address upon stepping up to the podium. Individuals may be allotted five 
minutes to make their comments and those comments shall be limited to 
their chosen topic. These limits may be waived by a majority vote of the 
board members present. However, if an individual wishes to oppose a 
rezoning action and has contributed more than $250 to the campaign of a 
commissioner, the individual shall also file a campaign disclosure form as 
required by O.C.G.A. § 36-67A-3 at least five calendar days prior to the 
first hearing by the board of commissioners. 


(c)  Decorum.  Members of the public are expected to comply with the 
rules of decorum established in this ordinance. Individuals violating any 
rules of the board may be ruled out of order by the Chair or on a point of 
order made by a commissioner other than the Chair. Any point of order 
raised by a commissioner other than the Chair shall be ruled on by a 
majority vote of the board. An individual violating the rules of decorum 
may be removed from the meeting at the direction of the Chair. 


Section 2-55. Meeting Summary.  


The county clerk shall prepare a written summary of the subjects acted 
upon in a meeting and the names of the commissioners present at a meeting 
within two business days following the meeting. The meeting summary shall be 
made available to the public for inspection. 


Section 2-56. Minutes.  


(a)   The clerk of the board shall promptly record the minutes for each board 
meeting. The minutes shall specify the names of commissioners present at the 







15 
 


meeting, a description of each motion or other proposal made at the meeting, the 
name of the commissioner who proposed each motion, the name of the 
commissioner who seconded each motion, and a record of all votes. In the case of 
a roll call vote, the name of each commissioner voting for or against a proposal 
shall be recorded. It shall be presumed that a commissioner has voted in the 
affirmative unless the minutes show otherwise. More detailed information may be 
included in the minutes at the request of the board. 


(b)   The board shall approve the minutes before they may be considered as an 
official record of the board. The minutes shall be open for public inspection once 
approved as official by the board but in no case later than immediately following 
the next regular meeting of the board. A copy of the minutes from the previous 
meeting shall be distributed to the commissioners at least three business days 
before the following meeting. The minutes of the previous meeting shall be 
corrected, if necessary, and approved by the board at the beginning of each 
meeting. A vote of three commissioners is required for approval. Conflicts 
regarding the content of the minutes shall be decided by a vote of three 
commissioners.  Upon being approved, the minutes shall be signed by the Chair 
and attested to by the clerk of the board of commissioners. 


Sec. 2-57. Maintenance of Minutes and Other Documents.  


Minutes shall be maintained in the offices of the county clerk. Copies of 
contracts, maps or similar documents related to actions by the commissioners 
during a meeting may be included in or attached to the minutes or incorporated by 
reference to an alternative location.   


Sec. 2-58. Committees.  


The Chair, with the concurrence upon a majority vote of the board, may 
create committees of members of the board, applicable county employees and 
interested citizens to study any issue before the board.  Any such committees may 
make recommendations to the board of commissioners but no committee shall be 
empowered to make any final decision on any matter before it for consideration. 
In addition to board members, committees may include other county officials, 
staff or citizens at large. Whenever a committee is created, its duties, any 
limitation on the scope of its duties, and the times, places, and periods of time for 
which the committee may operate shall be determined by the Chair with the 
concurrence of the board.  


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 
incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 
 
Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 
Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 
enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 
constitutional. 







16 
 


 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 
extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, 
to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 
reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 
Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 
extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 
greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 
Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 
herewith are hereby expressly repealed. 
 
Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 
specified herein. 
 
It is so ordained this ____ day of ___________, 2011, by the 
 
        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
        FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
Attest: 
 
___________________________    ______________________________ 
Clerk/Deputy Clerk      Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 





		Ord 2011- __ DRAFT Meeting Protocol.pdf

		Commissioners- Meeting Protocal and Rules Backup

		Commissioners- Meeting Ordinance Agenda Request with Backup

		Commissioners- Meeting Ordinance Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Meeting Ordinance Backup



		Commissioners- Meeting Protocal and Rules Backup.pdf

		Microsoft Word - Meeting Rules Ordinance - New 07-28.pdf

		Microsoft Word - Meeting Protocol Ordinance Revision 8-11














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Board of Commissioners


Further consideration of a proposed Ordinance which addresses the procedures, decorum, and rules of order used for conducting County 


Commission meetings; and consideration of an alternative Ordinance proposed by Commissioner Brown.


At the Board's June Workshop, the Board discussed a model ordinance published by the Association of County Commissioners of 


Georgia (ACCG) which addresses all aspects of what happens at a public County Commission meeting.  Staff was directed to assemble 


a similar ordinance that the Board could address that might be suitable for Fayette County or that the Board could initiate discussion 


from.  Staff returned to the July 6 Workshop with the proposed ordinance for the Board's consideration.  The Board directed staff to make 


changes to the proposed ordinance and return to the July 28 Meeting for further consideration.  Then the Board tabled the discussion 


until the August 11 Meeting.  If an ordinance results from this consideration, the County's existing ordinance would be deleted and 


replaced with the new, more comprehensive one.  The existing ordinance, known as "Article II. Board of Commissioners Division 2. Rules 


of Procedure" of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances only addresses the existing Rules of Order used by the Board during its 


meetings. 


 


Commissioner Steve Brown asked for this item to be tabled at the July 28, 2011 Board of Commissioners Meeting.  He has submitted an 


alternative Ordinance for this discussion.  The yellow highlighted portion in "Meeting Rules Ordinance" come from the audio recording of 


the July 6 Workshop Meeting.


This item has had considerable discussion.  At the conclusion of any further discussion, staff will either need further direction on how to 


proceed with the issue, or the Board will need to take formal action.


Not Applicable


No 6/1, 7/6, 7/28, 8/03


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Backup material for this issue contains (1) The ordinance containing changes made by the Board at its July 6 Workshop and (2) 


Commissioner Brown's suggested changes and sample alternative ordinance.


Old BusinessThursday, August 11, 2011







1 
 


 
DRAFT PRESENTED TO BOARD FOR DISCUSSION AT  JULY 28 MEETING 


AFTER INPUT FROM THE BOARD AT THE JULY 6 WORKSHOP 
 


STATE OF GEORGIA; 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


ORDINANCE NO.  2011 - __ 
 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE 
COUNTY, GEORGIA CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; TO PROVIDE FOR 
ETHICAL STANDARDS; TO PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE FOR 
SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO PROVIDE AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


 


WHEREAS, well-organized meetings allow a board of commissioners to reach decisions in a fair 
and consistent manner; 


WHEREAS, efficiency is served when the process of planning for and conducting public 
meetings is clearly stated and understood by public officials and citizens; and 


WHEREAS, public participation and access to the governmental decision-making process is a 
key element of our democratic system;  


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 
GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 
 
Section 1.  That Division II of Article II Board of Commissioners, of Chapter 2 Administration of the 
Code of Ordinances, Fayette County, Georgia is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced to read as 
follows: 
 


Sec. 2-36. Open Meetings.   


All meetings of the board of commissioners shall be held in accordance with the 
provisions of O.C.G.A. § 50-14-1 et seq. The public shall at all times be afforded access 
to all meetings other than executive sessions. 


Sec. 2-37. Executive Sessions.  


(a) As provided below or in accordance with Georgia law, the board may close a 
portion of a meeting to the public to discuss certain topics that are exempted from the 
Open Meetings Law. Such meetings shall be referred to as executive sessions. Any 
portion of the meeting not subject to any exemptions authorized by law shall be open to 
the public. 


(b)  Executive Sessions. Executive sessions of the board may be held for the purpose 
of discussing topics exempted from public access requirements by O.C.G.A. §§ 50-14-2 
and 50-14-3, including, but not limited to: 


(1) Pending or Potential Litigation. The board may close an open meeting to 
discuss topics subject to the attorney client privilege to the extent the 
commissioners consult and meet with the county attorney or other legal counsel 
to discuss pending or potential litigation, settlement, claims, administrative 
proceedings or other judicial actions brought by or against the county, a county 
official or employee. The county attorney or other attorney representing the 







2 
 


county must be present in the executive session. In order to close a meeting 
because of potential litigation, there must be a real and tangible threat of legal 
action indicated by a formal demand letter or other writing presenting a claim or 
a sincere intention to sue, previous or pre-existing litigation between the county 
and the other party or the hiring of an attorney by the threatening party. 


(2) Personnel Matters. The board may close an open meeting to discuss or 
deliberate on the appointment, employment, compensation, hiring, disciplinary 
action, dismissal or evaluation of a county official or employee except that the 
commissioners must receive evidence or hear arguments on proposed 
disciplinary action or dismissal of a county official or employee in an open 
meeting. Any votes by the board must be taken in an open meeting and be 
entered in the minutes of the open meeting. 


(3) Real Estate Acquisition by the County. The board may close an open meeting 
to discuss the future purchase of real estate. The board is required to keep 
minutes of an executive session held to discuss the acquisition of real estate as 
provided in paragraph (1) of subsection (f) of Section 2 of this ordinance. 


(4) Records that Could Compromise Public Security. The board may close an 
open meeting to review or discuss records that, if made public, would endanger 
life, safety or public property by compromising security against sabotage, 
criminal acts or terrorist acts. Such records include, but are not limited to, 
security plans, vulnerability assessments for public buildings or facilities, anti-
terrorist plans, plans or blueprints that reveal security devices or otherwise 
compromise security and contingency plans for meetings. 


(c)  Procedure for Entering into Executive Sessions. An executive session shall not be 
held except pursuant to a majority affirmative vote of the board members present taken in 
an open meeting. The minutes of the open meeting shall reflect the names of the 
commissioners present, those voting for the executive session, and the specific reasons 
for the executive session. 


(d)  Who Can Attend Executive Sessions. Board members and only individuals 
necessary to conduct an executive session may be present. The clerk of the board of 
commissioners and the county administrator shall be included in any executive session 
approved by the board of commissioners unless expressly barred by majority vote of the 
board members present prior to or during the course of an executive session.  The county 
attorney or other attorney representing the board must be included in any executive 
session pertaining to litigation or claims against the county. Other individuals may be 
invited to participate in an executive session by majority vote of the board members 
present prior to or during the course of the executive session but only if the presence of 
such individuals is consistent with the applicable exception authorizing the executive 
session.  No other individuals shall be permitted in the executive session. 


(e)  Non-Exempt Topics. If a commissioner or any other person in an executive 
session attempts to discuss a non-exempt topic during an executive session, the Chair 
shall immediately rule that commissioner or other person out of order and such 
discussion shall cease. If the commissioner or other person persists in discussing the non-
exempt topic, the Chair shall either cause the person or commissioner to be removed 
from the executive session or adjourn the meeting immediately. 







3 
 


(f)  Executive Session Minutes. 


(1) Executive Sessions Discussing Real Estate Acquisition. Minutes of an 
executive session in which the acquisition of real estate is discussed shall be 
taken in the same manner as minutes of an open meeting and shall be made 
available for public inspection except that any portion of the minutes identifying 
the real estate shall be redacted until such time as the acquisition of the real estate 
has been completed, terminated, abandoned or until court proceedings have been 
initiated.  


(2) Other Executive Sessions. Minutes of executive sessions devoted to any topic 
other than land acquisition may be taken and maintained by the clerk at the 
direction of the Chair. Any such minutes shall be maintained in a confidential file 
and shall not be subject to disclosure. 


(g)  Chair or Presiding Officer Affidavit. The Chair or other presiding officer shall 
execute an affidavit stating, under oath, that the executive session was devoted to topics 
exempt from the public access requirements. The affidavit shall include the specific 
exemption to the Open Meetings Law. The affidavit shall be notarized and filed with the 
minutes of the open meeting. 


(h)  Discussion of Executive Session Business. Commissioners, officials, employees 
and other individuals who attend executive sessions are prohibited from discussing or in 
any other way disclosing confidential information, legal advice and/or legal strategy 
discussed in the executive session unless: 


(1) The disclosure is required by law; 


(2) The disclosure is part of a judicial or administrative proceeding; or 


(3) Three members of the board authorizes the disclosure.  


In no way shall this subsection prevent a county attorney or other attorney representing 
the board from discussing any matters discussed in executive session relative to 
settlement or negotiation of a lawsuit or other claim against the county. Any 
commissioner that divulges has previously divulged or has threatened to divulge 
confidential information, legal advice or strategy discussion may be excluded from 
participation in an executive session by affirmative vote of three commissioners. A 
commissioner that divulges confidential information, legal advice, or strategy discussions 
may be a publicly sanctioned by a majority affirmative vote of the board of 
commissioners. 


Sec. 2-38.  Visual and Sound Recordings.  


Visual, sound, and visual and sound recordings shall be permitted for all open 
meetings. 


Sec. 2-39. Quorum.  







4 
 


(a) A quorum must be present for conducting meetings of the board. A quorum is a 
majority of all of the members of the board then in office. It is the duty of the Chair to 
enforce this rule. 


(b) Any commissioner may raise a point of order directed to the Chair if he or she 
believes that a quorum is not present. If, during the course of a meeting, a commissioner 
or commissioners leave and a quorum no longer exists, the meeting may not continue. If 
a quorum is not attained within thirty minutes, the meeting may be rescheduled by the 
Chair with the approval of a majority of the commissioners present.  
 
(c) No official action shall be taken except upon the affirmative vote of at least three 
members of the commission unless otherwise specified herein. The chairman shall be 
entitled to the same voting rights as other members of the board of commissioners on 
questions considered by the commission.  
 
Sec. 2-40. Chair.  
 
(a) The Chair shall be appointed at the first meeting of each year.  The county 
attorney shall call the first meeting to order and call for nominations for the Chair as the 
first order of business.  After receiving nominations, the county attorney shall ask for a 
motion to appoint the Chair.  The motion to appoint the Chair requires a second prior to a 
vote.  If a motion to appoint the Chair fails, the county attorney shall call for additional 
motions until a Chair is selected.  
 
(b) The Chair of the board of commissioners, as presiding officer, is responsible for 
the orderly conduct of the meeting. In order to fulfill this duty, the Chair shall enforce the 
rules of procedure that are adopted by the board of commissioners. The Chair shall be 
impartial and conduct the meetings in a fair manner. The Chair may introduce motions or 
second motions. 
 
Sec. 2-41. Vice-Chair.  


The board shall select a vice-Chair from the board members at the beginning of each 
calendar year. The vice-Chair shall fulfill the duties of the Chair if the Chair is not in 
attendance. The motion to appoint the vice-Chair requires a second prior to a vote. 


Section 2-42. Presiding Officer.  


If the Chair and the vice-Chair are absent or otherwise unable to serve as presiding 
officer at a meeting and a quorum of commissioners is present, the remaining 
commissioners shall select a commissioner to serve as presiding officer of the meeting 
until either the Chair or vice-Chair is present at the meeting. 


Section 2-43. Parliamentarian. The county attorney shall serve as the parliamentarian 
for board meetings. 


Section 2-44. Rules of Order.  


(a)  Call to order.  If, at the time of a meeting, the chairman determines that all 
commissioners have been notified or an attempt has been made to notify all 
commissioners and that a quorum of the board of commissioners is present, he shall have 







5 
 


the authority to call the meeting to order. The call to order shall not require any preceding 
action but may be issued solely by the authority of the chairman.  
 
(b)  Motions—General requirement.  The board of commissioners can take action 
only when a motion to take such action is made and passed by the board.  
 


(1)  Procedure. 
 


a. Before a motion can be discussed or voted upon by the board of 
commissioners, it must be presented to the board by a member of the 
board. The presentment is made by merely stating the motion.  
 
b. Immediately after the motion is presented to the board, the chairman 
shall ask for a commissioner to second the motion. If the motion is not 
seconded, it shall fail for lack of a second and can not be remade until the 
next meeting of the board, except as otherwise provided herein.  
 
c. If the motion is seconded, the chairman shall immediately ask for 
discussion of the motion. Discussion of the motion shall be limited to the 
board of commissioners and shall relate solely to the motion on hand; 
however, any commissioner may question a member of the audience or 
staff provided such question shall pertain strictly to the motion on hand.  
 
d. Upon the conclusion of discussion, the chairman shall cause the 
motion to be restated and shall then call the question. 
 


(2)  Amendment. 
 


a. An amendment may be suggested by any member of the board. The 
amendment shall be suggested only during the discussion of the original 
motion.  
 
b. A motion can be amended only with the consent of the commissioner 
making the motion. If the commissioner who seconded the original 
motion disagrees with the amendment, he shall be allowed to withdraw 
his second. When a second is withdrawn, the chairman shall immediately 
request a new second to the amended motion.  
 
c. After a motion is amended and seconded, the chairman shall call for 
discussion and proceed with the consideration of the motion in the 
manner provided above.  
 


(3)  Withdrawal. 
 


a. Any motion may be withdrawn at the discretion of the commissioner 
making the motion. 
 
b. Motions may be withdrawn at any time prior to but not during nor 
after the restating of the motion by the chairman. 
 


(4)  Tabling. 







6 
 


 
a. During the discussion of a motion, the motion may be tabled for 
further discussion by the board upon the motion of any commissioner 
other than the commissioner who made the original motion.  


 
b. The motion to table shall specify the time and place for the continued 
discussion. 
 
c. Discussion of the original motion shall immediately cease when a 
motion to table is made. 


 
d. A motion to table shall not require a second but shall require 
discussion, restating the motion and a call of the question. 


 
(5) Reconsideration. 


 
a. A motion, which has been passed or defeated, or which fails for lack 
of a second, may be reconsidered by the board of commissioners during 
the same meeting provided the board pass a motion for reconsideration. 
Otherwise, the original motion may not be presented to the board again 
until its next meeting.  


 
b. A motion for reconsideration can only be made by a commissioner 
who voted against the original motion, if defeated, or in favor of the 
original motion, if passed. Otherwise, any commissioner may make a 
motion for reconsideration.  


 
(6)   Vote. 


 
a. A commissioner in favor of a motion shall say “aye” while holding up 
his/her right hand. 
 
b. A commissioner against a motion shall say “nay” while holding up 
his/her right hand. 
 
c. A commissioner present but refusing to vote shall be recorded as 
abstaining. 
 
d. A unanimous passing vote shall mean a vote in which all members of 
the board of commissioners present vote in favor of the motion.  
 


(c)   Ordinances. The passage of all ordinances must be accomplished by motion.  
 
(d)   Special motions – Call the question. 
 


(1)  During the discussion of any motion, any commissioner may move to call the 
question in order to end discussion and have the vote on the pending motion.  


 
(2)  When a commissioner has moved to call the question, discussion of the 
original motion shall cease and the chairman shall immediately restate the motion 







7 
 


and then proceed with a vote on whether to call the question. A second of a 
motion to call the question shall not be necessary.  


 
(3)  If the vote is in favor of the motion to call the question, the chairman shall 
immediately call the question on the original motion.  


 
(4)  If the vote is against the motion to call the question, discussion of the 
original motion shall continue. 


 
(e)   Point of order. 
 


(1)  Whenever a commissioner has a question as to the procedure being followed 
by the chairman, he may raise a point of order. A point of order requires no 
second.  
 
(2)  Upon the raising of a point of order, the chairman shall stop the meeting and 
the commissioner shall state his question. The meeting shall continue after a 
determination of the question has been rendered by a majority vote of the 
members in attendance at the meeting.  


 
(f)   Out of order. 
 


(1)  The chairman shall have the authority to cite any individual out of order 
when that individual, in the opinion of the chairman, violates these rules of 
procedure.  
 
(2)  No other action shall be required in citing an individual out of order. 
 
(3)  When an individual has been cited as out of order, the chairman shall state 
the reasons therefor and shall give the individual directions regarding compliance 
with these rules.  
 
(4)  If a commissioner believes that the chairman has inappropriately cited an 
individual as out of order, the commissioner may raise a point of order. 
 


(g)   Adjournment. 
 


(1)  Adjournment of the meeting must be by motion. 
 
(2)  A motion to adjourn does not require a second but does require discussion. 
 
(3)  When a motion to adjourn is passed, the board of commissioners can no 
longer act until another meeting is called to order. 
 


(h)   Public discussion. 
 


(a)  Whenever public discussion of a matter before the board of commissioners is 
allowed, any member of the public shall have the right to discuss the matter at 
hand prior to the presentment of the motion.  
 







8 
 


(b)  The right of a member of the public to discuss a matter before the board shall 
be limited to three (3) minutes per topic, unless as otherwise granted by special 
permission of the chairman.  
 
(c)  All discussion shall relate solely to the matter at hand. 
 


(i)  Vice-chairman references.  All references in this division to chairman shall also 
include the vice-chairman when the vice-chairman is conducting the meeting.   
 
(j)  Action chart.  Actions shall be taken on motions as follows: 
 


 


Section 2-45. Suspending the Rules of Order.  


Rules of procedure may be suspended in the case of an emergency. A motion to 
suspend the rules requires a second, is debatable, and requires three votes of the board. 
Rules governing quorums, voting methods and requirements, notification to 
commissioners of meetings and rules necessary for compliance with state law may not be 
suspended; provided, however, that, in the event that a state of emergency is declared by 
the Governor or other authorized state official, the board may waive time-consuming 
procedures and formalities imposed by state law. 


Section 2-46. Regular Meetings.  


The board of commissioners shall establish a schedule for regular meetings at its 
first meeting of each year.  The schedule shall state the time and place for each meeting.  
A notice containing the foregoing information shall be posted and maintained in a 
conspicuous place available to the general public at the regular meeting place of the 
board.  


Section 2-47. Meetings Other Than Regular Meetings.  


(a)   The board may meet at times and locations other than those regularly scheduled 
meetings. 


Type Second Discussion Vote Priority 
Regular motion x x x None 
Amendment x x x None 
Withdrawal of motion None None None x 
Table None x x x 
Reconsideration x x x x 
Call the question None None x x 
Point of order None x None x 
Out of order None x None x 
Adjournment None x x None 







9 
 


(b)   Special Meetings and Rescheduled Regular Meetings.   A regular meeting may 
be canceled, rescheduled or moved to a new location within the county site by the Chair 
for any reason.  Other special meetings may be scheduled by the Chair or at the request of 
at least two commissioners. Whenever a rescheduled regular meeting or any other special 
meeting is to be held at a time or place other than the regularly scheduled time or place, 
written notice of the change shall be posted for at least 24 hours at the regular meeting 
place. In addition, written or oral notice shall be given by the clerk at least 24 hours in 
advance of the meeting to either the legal organ of the county or a newspaper having 
general circulation at least equal to that of the legal organ, as well as to each member of 
the county governing authority. 


(c)   Meetings with Less Than 24 Hours Notice. When emergency circumstances 
occur, the board may hold a meeting with less than 24 hours notice to the public. When 
such meetings are to be held, the clerk shall provide notice to the legal organ of the 
county or a newspaper with a general circulation at least equal to that of the legal organ 
and to each member of the county governing authority as soon as possible. The notice 
shall include the subjects expected to be considered at the meeting. In addition, the 
minutes shall reflect the reason for the emergency meeting and the nature of the notice 
given to the media. 


(d)  Meetings during a State of Emergency. When it is imprudent, inexpedient or 
impossible to hold board meetings at the regular meeting place due to emergency or 
disaster resulting from manmade or natural causes, as declared by the Governor or other 
authorized state official, the board may meet anywhere within or outside of the county.  
Such a meeting may be called by the Chair or by any two commissioners. At the meeting, 
the commissioners shall establish and designate emergency temporary meeting locations 
where public business may be transacted during the emergency. Any action taken in such 
meetings shall have the same effect as if performed at the regular meeting site. 


Section 2-48. Order of Business. All regular board meetings shall substantially follow 
an established order of business. The order shall be as follows: 


I. Call to order 


II.  Invocation and Pledge to the Flag 


III. Acceptance of Agenda 


IV.   Recognitions, Proclamations, and Awards 


 V.   Public Hearings 


VI.   Public Comment 


VII . Consent agenda 


VIII.  Old business 


IX.  New business 


X.  Reports (Administrator, Attorney, Departments, Board Members) 







10 
 


XI.   Executive Session 


XII.  Adjournment 


Section 2-49. Agenda.  


The Agenda shall be prepared in accordance with the Fayette County Policies 
and Procedures Manual. 


Section 2-50. Consent Agenda.  


A consent agenda may be prepared by the county administrator for the board to 
unanimously adopt on routine items. Any items of business that are expected to receive 
unanimous approval without debate may be placed on a consent agenda. If a 
commissioner objects to an item being on the consent agenda, the Chair shall move that 
particular item to the regular agenda.  The Chair may ask for unanimous approval of the 
items on the consent agenda. If there are no objections, all the items on the consent 
agenda shall be approved by a vote of three members of the board. 


Section 2-51. Decorum.  


The Chair shall enforce the rules of decorum. The purpose of meetings of the 
board of commissioners is to conduct the county’s business. Meetings shall be conducted 
in an orderly and respectful fashion. They are not a forum to belittle, ridicule or 
embarrass county commissioners, other county officials, county employees, or others. 


(a)  Conduct of Members of the Board of Commissioners. 


(1) Commissioners should arrive on time for a meeting and be prepared. 


(2) Commissioners should attend the entire meeting. 


(3) Cell phones or other communications devices shall be turned off or in silent 
mode. 


(4) Commissioners should not take phone calls or check emails, social 
networking sites, chat rooms or other internet sites during a meeting. 


(5) Commissioners shall conduct themselves in a professional and respectful 
manner.  


(6) Commissioners desiring to speak must first be recognized by the Chair. 


(7) Commissioners may only address the motion that is being discussed. 


(8) Commissioners shall direct their remarks to the Chair and not to individual 
commissioners, staff, or citizens in attendance. 


(9) Only one commissioner at a time is permitted to speak. Commissioners shall 
not interrupt any other person who has the floor. 







11 
 


(10) Personal attacks and inappropriate remarks shall be ruled out of order by the 
Chair. Commissioners may not use commission meetings to make derogatory 
comments about particular employees or to air their personal grievances with 
other commissioners. 


(11) There shall be no use of profanity during the meeting. 


(12) Remarks may not address the character of the person involved. 


(13) Commissioners shall not confront other board members, department heads, 
employees or other officials in an accusatory manner. 


(14) Commissioners may raise a point of order if a rule is believed to have been 
broken. A second is not required. The Chair may rule on the question or may 
allow the board to debate the issue and decide by majority vote of those members 
present. 


(15) While commissioners may not agree with all decisions of the board, all 
commissioners shall recognize the validity of any lawful action approved by the 
board. Commissioners shall not refuse to sign any ordinance, resolution, contract 
or other document because he or she did not vote for the action taken. 


(16) Commissioners should keep an open mind on all issues coming before the 
board. 


(b)  Conduct of the Chair or Presiding Officer. In addition to rules of decorum 
applicable to commissioners generally, the following rules shall apply to the Chair or 
presiding officer: 


(1) The Chair or presiding officer shall recognize any commissioner who has the 
right to speak. 


(2) The Chair or presiding officer shall rule out of order any discussion on topics 
other than the motion being discussed. 


(3) The Chair or presiding officer shall only permit one commissioner at a time to 
speak. 


(4) Personal attacks, breaches of the rules of decorum and inappropriate remarks 
shall be ruled out of order by the vice-Chair or presiding officer. 


(5) The Chair or presiding officer shall not confront other board members, 
department heads, employees or other officials in an accusatory manner. 


(6) While the Chair or presiding officer may not agree with all decisions of the 
board, he or she shall recognize the validity of any action approved by the board. 


(7)  The Chair or presiding officer shall not refuse to sign any ordinance, 
resolution, contract or other document because he or she did not vote for the 
action taken. 







12 
 


(8) The Chair or presiding officer shall keep an open mind on all issues coming 
before the board. 


(c)  Conduct of Members of the Public in Meetings Generally. 


(1) All cell phones and other communication devices shall be turned off or in 
silent mode; provided, however, that a cell phone or device may be used to make 
a video or audio recording of the meeting. 


(2) All meeting attendees must be silent during the meeting while business is 
conducted. 


(3) Anyone wishing to speak must first be recognized by the Chair. 


(4) All comments must be directed to the Chair and not to individual 
commissioners, staff or others. 


(5) All meeting attendees must conduct themselves in a respectful manner. 


(6) Personal attacks and derogatory or inappropriate remarks are not permitted. 


(7) There shall be no use of profanity during the meeting. 


Section 2-52. Voting.  


Passage of a motion shall require the affirmative vote of a three commissioners 
and voting at a meeting at which a quorum is present.   


Section 2-53. Abstentions.  


A commissioner shall vote on all motions unless he or she has a conflict of 
interest preventing him or her from making a decision in a fair and legal manner. If a 
conflict of interest does exist, the commissioner shall explain for the record his or her 
decision to abstain on any vote.  


Section 2-54. Public Participation.  


Public participation in meetings of the board of commissioners shall be permitted 
in accordance with the provisions of this section. 


(a)  Public Hearings. Advertised hearings on zoning matters, including 
zoning map and ordinance text amendments shall be governed in accordance 
with the zoning policies and procedures adopted by the board of commissioners. 


(b)  Public Comment.  All members of the public wishing to address the 
board shall submit their name and the topic of their comments to the county clerk 
at least fifteen minutes before the beginning of the meeting. Individuals may be 
allotted five minutes to make their comments and those comments shall be 
limited to their chosen topic. These limits may be waived by a majority vote of 
the board members present. However, if an individual wishes to oppose a 
rezoning action and has contributed more than $250 to the campaign of a 
commissioner, the individual shall also file a campaign disclosure form as 







13 
 


required by O.C.G.A. § 36-67A-3 at least five calendar days prior to the first 
hearing by the board of commissioners. 


(c)  Decorum.  Members of the public are expected to comply with the rules 
of decorum established in this ordinance. Individuals violating any rules of the 
board may be ruled out of order by the Chair or on a point of order made by a 
commissioner other than the Chair. Any point of order raised by a commissioner 
other than the Chair shall be ruled on by a majority vote of the board. An 
individual violating the rules of decorum may be removed from the meeting at 
the direction of the Chair. 


Section 2-55. Meeting Summary.  


The county clerk shall prepare a written summary of the subjects acted upon in a 
meeting and the names of the commissioners present at a meeting within two business 
days following the meeting. The meeting summary shall be made available to the public 
for inspection. 


Section 2-56. Minutes.  


(a)   The clerk of the board shall promptly record the minutes for each board meeting. 
The minutes shall specify the names of commissioners present at the meeting, a 
description of each motion or other proposal made at the meeting, the name of the 
commissioner who proposed each motion, the name of the commissioner who seconded 
each motion, and a record of all votes. In the case of a roll call vote, the name of each 
commissioner voting for or against a proposal shall be recorded. It shall be presumed that 
a commissioner has voted in the affirmative unless the minutes show otherwise. More 
detailed information may be included in the minutes at the request of the board. 


(b)   The board shall approve the minutes before they may be considered as an official 
record of the board. The minutes shall be open for public inspection once approved as 
official by the board but in no case later than immediately following the next regular 
meeting of the board. A copy of the minutes from the previous meeting shall be 
distributed to the commissioners at least three business days before the following 
meeting. The minutes of the previous meeting shall be corrected, if necessary, and 
approved by the board at the beginning of each meeting. A vote of three commissioners is 
required for approval. Conflicts regarding the content of the minutes shall be decided by 
a vote of three commissioners.  Upon being approved, the minutes shall be signed by the 
Chair and attested to by the clerk of the board of commissioners. 


Sec. 2-57. Maintenance of Minutes and Other Documents.  


Minutes shall be maintained in the offices of the county clerk. Copies of 
contracts, maps or similar documents related to actions by the commissioners during a 
meeting may be included in or attached to the minutes or incorporated by reference to an 
alternative location.   


Sec. 2-58. Committees.  


The Chair, with the concurrence of the board, may create committees of members 
of the board to study any issue before the board.  Any such committees may make 







14 
 


recommendations to the board of commissioners but no committee shall be empowered to 
make any final decision on any matter before it for consideration. In addition to board 
members, committees may include other county officials, staff or citizens at large. 
Whenever a committee is created, its duties, any limitation on the scope of its duties, and 
the times, places, and periods of time for which the committee may operate shall be 
determined by the Chair with the concurrence of the board.  


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 
reference as if fully set out herein. 
 
Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed by 
the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 
 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is 
severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby 
further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by 
law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent upon any 
other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any reason 
whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or 
decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of Commissioners that 
such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 
render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, 
constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 
hereby expressly repealed. 
 
Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise specified 
herein. 
 
It is so ordained this ____ day of ___________, 2011, by the 
 
        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
        FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
Attest: 
 
___________________________    ______________________________ 
Clerk/Deputy Clerk      Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 





		Commissioners- Meeting Protoc...Rules Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Meeting Protocal and Rules Backup

		Ord 2011- __ DRAFT Meeting Protocol.pdf

		Commissioners- Meeting Protocal and Rules Backup

		Commissioners- Meeting Ordinance Agenda Request with Backup

		Commissioners- Meeting Ordinance Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Meeting Ordinance Backup



		Commissioners- Meeting Protocal and Rules Backup.pdf

		Microsoft Word - Meeting Rules Ordinance - New 07-28.pdf

		Microsoft Word - Meeting Protocol Ordinance Revision 8-11
















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Commissioners Jack Krakeel


Consideration of Resolution No. 2011-12 which establishes a 9-1-1 charge on prepaid wireless transactions at the point of retail sale.


For years cities and counties have been allowed by state law to impose a limited fee on telephone lines, both land lines and wireless 


lines, for the purpose of applying the proceeds toward the cost of operating an emergency 9-1-1 communications system.  Fayette 


County passed resolutions imposing fees on land lines ($1.50)  and wireless lines ($1.00) years ago. However, the law that allowed a 


charge prepaid wireless phone lines (2008) has not adequately addressed the collection of prepaid fees. Recent legislation amending 


existing law has provided a remedy to the problem through a method of collecting the fee at the point of retail sale of prepaid wireless 


transactions. The 9-1-1 fee for each prepaid wireless transaction will be $.75. 


 


Since the State Department of Revenue Sales and Use Tax Division will collect the fees from retail vendors, a resolution or ordinance 


must be enacted by a local government and forwarded to the State so that the fees can be returned to the local government. Funds that 


are not "claimed" by a jurisdiction via resolution or ordinance will used by the State as grants to communities trying to set up a 9-1-1 


system. 


 


Since Fayette's 9-1-1 system is a multi-jurisdictional system that serves the entire county, the municipalities of Fayetteville, Tyrone, and 


Peachtree City will also need to adopt a similar resolution so that each of them can receive their funds from the State as well. 


Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2011-12 which establishes a 9-1-1 charge on prepaid wireless transactions at the point of retail sale.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, August 11, 2011







State of Georgia; 
County of Fayette 


RESOLUTION NO. 2011-12 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF IMPOSING A 9-1-1 CHARGE ON PREPAID WIRLESS SERVICE AT THE 
RETAIL POINT OF SALE; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES AND 
RESOLUTIONS; TO ESTABLISH AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


 WHEREAS, Part 4 of Article 2 of Chapter 5 of Title 46 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, 
as amend by Act No. 187, Georgia Laws 2011, authorizes counties and cities that operate a 9-1-1 public 
safety answering point to impose a 9-1-1 charge on prepaid wireless service at the retail point of sale; 
and 


    WHEREAS,  pursuant to Code Section 46-5-134.2 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, such 
charges may be imposed at the rate of seventy-five (75) cents per retail transaction; and 


    WHEREAS, revenues received by a county or municipality from such charges must be deposited in 
the emergency telephone assistance fund maintained by the county or municipality; and 


    WHEREAS, imposition of the charge on prepaid wireless service is contingent upon the enactment 
of an ordinance or resolution by the governing authority of the county or municipality; and  


 WHEREAS,  the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia (the “County”) is the duly 
elected governing authority for Fayette County; and 


    WHEREAS, Fayette County operates a multi-jurisdictional 9-1-1 public safety answering point by 
intergovernmental agreement with the City of Fayetteville, the City of Peachtree City, the Town of 
Tyrone and the Fayette County Board of Education; 


NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, does hereby resolve as 
follows: 


Section 1.  9-1-1 Charge on Prepaid Wireless Transactions 


In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 46-5-134.2, there is hereby imposed a prepaid wireless 9-1-1 charge as 
defined by O.C.G.A. §46-5-134.2(a)(4) upon every prepared wireless retail transaction occurring within 
the jurisdiction of the public service answering point in the amount of seventy-five (75) cents.  


Section 2.  Collection of 9-1-1 Charge on Prepaid Wireless Transactions 


Prepaid wireless 9-1-1- charges collected by sellers shall be remitted to the Commissioner of the 
Department of Revenue at the times and in the manner provided by Chapter 8 of Title 48 of the Official 
Code of Georgia Annotated with respect to the sales and use tax imposed on prepaid wireless calling 
service. 


Section 3.  Administrative Provisions  







The Clerk of the County is hereby directed to file with the State Revenue Commissioner a certified copy 
of this resolution and any  amendments thereto, in accordance with O.C.G.A § 46-5-134.2(j)(5), within 
ten (10) days of enactment of this resolution. 


Section 4.  Depositing of Funds; Use of Funds 


In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 46-5-134.2(j)(5), funds received by Fayette County, as imposed by this 
resolution, shall be deposited in the Emergency Telephone System Fund maintained by Fayette County 
pursuant to O.C.G.A § 46-5-134 and kept separately from general revenue of the County; all such funds 
shall be used exclusively for the purposes authorized by O.C.G.A §46-5-134 (e). 


Section 5.  Repealer 


All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


Section 6.  Effective Date 


The effective date of this resolution is January 1, 2012. 


 SO RESOLVED this 11th day of August, 2011, by the 


 


        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
        FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Clerk/Deputy Clerk 





















		Commissioners- Prepaid Wireless Fee Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Prepaid Wireless Fee Backup

		Commissioners-Prepaid Wireless Fee Resolution Backup 1

		SKMBT_C25211080415280.pdf








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Mary S. Holland


Public Hearing on proposed 2011 Property Tax Millage Rates which are scheduled to be adopted on August 25, 2011.


Each year the Board of Commissioners sets tax millage rate for the purpose of levying property taxes. A public hearing will be held at the 


Board's Special Called August 18, 2011 meeting and at the August 25, 2011 Board of Commissioners meeting. 


 


Information will be presented concerning the 2011 millage rates, including an overview of the changes in the county tax digest and the 


impact to an average tax paying citizen. 


 


The proposal for the 2011 millage rates are as follows: 


     General Fund's Maintenance and Operations - an increase from 2010 of 0.245 for rollback rate. 


     Fire Services - an increase from 2010 of 0.509 mills and from the 2011 rollback rate of 0.388 mills. 


     EMS Services - a decrease from 2010 of 0.098 mills and from the 2011 rollback rate of 0.132 mills. 


     E-911 Services-an increase from 2010 of 0.207 mills. 


 


The County wide proposed tax levy for 2011 totals 35,035,010.73, a $1,521,706.79, or 4.54% increase over the 2010 tax levy of 


$33,513,303.89. 


No action is required at this time.  This hearing is for informational purposes only.  The Board will be requested to consider adoption of 


the proposed millage rates at the third public meeting scheduled for August 25, 2011.


Not Applicable.


Yes Annually


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


This is the first of three Public Hearings concerning the establishment of the 2011 Property Tax Millage Rates.  The second Public 


Hearing will be held on August 18, and the third Public Hearing and the vote will be held on August 25, 2011.


Public HearingThursday, August 11, 2011































GENERAL FUND - COUNTY 


INCORPORATED 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011


REAL & PERSONAL 2,886,406,875 3,061,863,695 3,153,455,406 3,189,912,959 3,003,040,649 2,911,453,465


MOTOR VEHICLES 162,056,790 175,562,940 199,213,330 207,871,560 170,047,970 169,451,710


MOBILE HOMES 83,045 93,164 89,863 79,057 72,690 70,233


TIMBER - 100% 0 0 0 41,866 41,866 0


HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT 427,813 859,320 180,994 76,624 0 0


GROSS DIGEST 3,048,974,523 3,238,379,119 3,352,939,593 3,397,982,066 3,173,203,175 3,080,975,408


LESS: M&O EXEMPTIONS 164,788,555 162,392,405 168,367,788 181,987,316 173,015,880 178,421,222


NET M&O DIGEST 2,884,185,968 3,075,986,714 3,184,571,805 3,215,994,750 3,000,187,295 2,902,554,186


GROSS M&O MILLAGE 7.604 7.468 7.356 7.206 7.321 7.637


LESS: ROLLBACKS 1.912 2.036 1.956 1.806 1.921 1.992


NET M&O MILLAGE 5.692 5.432 5.400 5.400 5.400 5.645


NET TAXES LEVIED 16,416,786.53 16,708,759.83 17,196,687.75 17,366,371.65 16,201,011.39 16,384,918.38


GENERAL FUND - COUNTY 


UNINCORPORATED 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011


REAL & PERSONAL 1,965,100,471 2,087,209,956 2,153,924,874 2,154,564,817 1,955,421,301 1,842,979,776


MOTOR VEHICLES 167,370,500 175,404,890 191,226,940 189,985,540 150,089,220 150,601,610


MOBILE HOMES 7,100,176 5,731,029 5,235,910 5,021,504 3,962,914 3,683,460


TIMBER - 100% 210,565 0 129,550 41,369 41,369 16,500


HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT 185,007 236,522 78,705 57,939 0 0


GROSS DIGEST 2,139,966,719 2,268,582,397 2,350,595,979 2,349,671,169 2,109,514,804 1,997,281,346


LESS: M&O EXEMPTIONS 100,747,100 101,433,673 104,067,305 108,060,698 110,282,412 110,272,822


NET M&O DIGEST 2,039,219,619 2,167,148,724 2,246,528,674 2,241,610,471 1,999,232,392 1,887,008,524


GROSS M&O MILLAGE 7.604 7.468 7.356 7.206 7.321 7.637


LESS: ROLLBACKS 2.716 2.036 1.956 1.806 1.921 1.992


NET M&O MILLAGE 4.888 5.432 5.400 5.400 5.400 5.645


NET TAXES LEVIED 9,967,705.50 11,771,951.87 12,131,254.84 12,104,696.54 10,795,854.92 10,652,163.12


FIRE SERVICES 


Unincorporated/Brooks/Tyrone 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011


REAL & PERSONAL 2,306,763,042 2,472,171,514 2,560,322,820 2,569,889,922 2,338,902,372 2,208,923,571


MOTOR VEHICLES 188,533,400 199,455,890 220,814,330 221,474,520 176,305,920 176,049,880


MOBILE HOMES 7,183,218 5,824,193 5,325,773 5,094,184 4,035,594 3,753,693


TIMBER - 100% 210,565 0 129,550 41,369 41,369 16,500


HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT 402,218 573,986 184,133 64,862 0 0


GROSS DIGEST 2,503,092,443 2,678,025,583 2,786,776,606 2,796,564,857 2,519,285,255 2,388,743,644


LESS: M&O EXEMPTIONS 116,730,131 118,929,285 122,534,479 127,045,347 130,417,583 131,720,229


NET M&O DIGEST 2,386,362,312 2,559,096,298 2,664,242,127 2,669,519,510 2,388,867,672 2,257,023,415


GROSS M&O MILLAGE 2.906 2.000 1.991 1.991 1.991 2.500


LESS: ROLLBACKS 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000


NET M&O MILLAGE 2.906 2.000 1.991 1.991 1.991 2.500


NET TAXES LEVIED 6,934,768.88 5,118,192.60 5,304,506.07 5,315,013.34 4,756,235.53 5,642,558.54


EMERGENCY MEDICAL  


SERVICES - 


Unincorporated/Fayetteville/  


Brooks/Tyrone 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011


REAL & PERSONAL 3,328,629,068 3,446,542,324 3,446,342,217 3,141,547,280 2,963,885,866


MOTOR VEHICLES 241,937,800 270,428,800 273,121,100 218,570,300 217,649,040


MOBILE HOMES 5,824,193 5,325,773 5,100,561 4,035,594 3,753,693


TIMBER - 100% 0 129,550 41,369 41,369 16,500


HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT 1,034,509 232,148 103,593 0 0


GROSS DIGEST 3,577,425,570 3,722,658,595 3,724,708,840 3,364,194,543 3,185,305,099


LESS: M&O EXEMPTIONS 139,773,045 144,063,575 148,654,454 152,146,911 154,346,863


NET M&O DIGEST 3,437,652,525 3,578,595,020 3,576,054,386 3,212,047,632 3,030,958,236


GROSS M&O MILLAGE 0.550 0.548 0.548 0.548 0.450


LESS: ROLLBACKS 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000


NET M&O MILLAGE 0.550 0.548 0.548 0.548 0.450


NET TAXES LEVIED 1,890,708.89 1,961,070.07 1,959,677.80 1,760,202.10 1,363,931.21


E911 SERVICES                              


County Wide 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011


REAL & PERSONAL 4,754,433,251  


MOTOR VEHICLES 320,053,320     


MOBILE HOMES 3,753,693         


TIMBER - 100% 16,500              


HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT 0


GROSS DIGEST 5,078,256,764  


LESS: M&O EXEMPTIONS 288,694,044     


NET M&O DIGEST 4,789,562,720  


NOTICE OF HEARING TO SET 2011 MILLAGE RATES


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners does hereby announce that the 2011 millage rates will be set at 


a meeting to be held in the Public Meeting Room at the Fayette County Administrative Complex at 140 West 


Stonewall Avenue in Fayetteville on August 25, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. and pursuant to the requirements of 


O.C.G.A. Section 48-5-32 does hereby publish the following presentation of the current year's digest and 


levy, along with the history of the tax digest and levy for the past  five years. 


FAYETTE COUNTY  2011 TAX DIGEST AND 5 YEAR HISTORY OF LEVY







GROSS M&O MILLAGE 0.207


LESS: ROLLBACKS 0.000


NET M&O MILLAGE 0.207


NET TAXES LEVIED 991,439.48


TOTAL COUNTY WIDE 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011


REAL & PERSONAL 4,851,507,346 5,149,073,651 5,307,380,280 5,344,477,776 4,958,461,950 4,754,433,241


MOTOR VEHICLES 329,427,290 350,967,830 390,440,270 397,857,100 320,137,190 320,053,320


MOBILE HOMES 7,183,221 5,824,193 5,325,773 5,100,561 4,035,604 3,753,693


TIMBER - 100% 210,565 0 129,550 83,235 83,235 16,500


HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT 612,820 1,095,842 259,699 134,563 0 0


GROSS DIGEST 5,188,941,242 5,506,961,516 5,703,535,572 5,747,653,235 5,282,717,979 5,078,256,754


LESS: M&O EXEMPTIONS 265,535,655 263,826,078 272,435,093 290,048,014 283,298,292 288,694,044


NET M&O DIGEST 4,923,405,587 5,243,135,438 5,431,100,479 5,457,605,221 4,999,419,687 4,789,562,710


NET TAXES LEVIED 33,319,260.91 35,489,613.19 36,593,518.73 36,745,759.33 33,513,303.94 35,035,010.73


NET TAX $ INCREASE 740,513.87 2,170,352.28 1,103,905.54 152,253.30 -3,232,455.39 1,521,706.79


NET TAX % INCREASE 2.27% 6.51% 3.11% 0.42% -8.80% 4.54%











2011 Property Tax         
Millage Rates


Fayette County Fayette County 
Board of Commissioners


August 11, 2011







Digest Changes - 2011


• 2010 Digest $4,999,419,677


• Digest Changes


� Growth $16,675,903


� Negative Reassessments:
�Real Property     $217,635,479�Real Property     $217,635,479


�Personal and Other Property 3,417,759


�Motor Vehicles 83,870


� Total Negative Reassessments $221,137,108


� Increase in Exemptions/Decrease in Digest 5,395,752


� Negative Change in Net Digest (4.2%) $209,856,957


• 2011 Digest $4,789,562,720











PROPOSED
Millage Rates
2011 vs 2010


Description


Proposed


2011


Actual           


2010


Change 


Increase / 


(Decrease)


General Fund 


Maintenance & 


Operations (M&O)


5.645 5.400 0.245


Fire Services 2.500 1.991 0.509


Emergency 


Medical Services


0.450 0.548 (0.098)


E911 Services 0.207 0.000 0.207







PROPOSED
Millage Rates
2011 vs 2010


Description


Proposed


2011


Actual  


2010


Change 


Increase / (Decrease)


Over Last Year


PTC


M&O


E-911


5.645


0.207


5.852


5.400 


-0-


5.400


+0.452


Fayetteville


M&O


EMS


E-911


5.645


0.450


0.207 


6.302


5.400


0.548 


-0-


5.948


+0.354


Unincorporated County/


Brooks/Tyrone


M&O


EMS


Fire


E-911


5.645


0.450


2.500


0.207


8.802


5.400


0.548


1.991


-0-


7.939


+0.863











FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


140 Stonewall Avenue West


Fayetteville, GA  30214 MAKE CHECK OR MONEY ORDER PAYABLE TO:


 Fayette County Tax Commissioner


Taxpayer: UNINCORPORATED
Description:


Location: SAMPLE TAX BILL  
District:


2010 Millage Rates


Entity Adjusted FMV


Net 


Assessment Exemptions


Taxable 


Value


Millage 


Rate Gross Tax Credit Net Tax


STATE TAX 250,000.00           100,000.00    2,000.00      98,000.00   0.250 24.50           24.50              


COUNTY M&O 250,000.00           100,000.00    5,000.00      95,000.00   7.321 695.50          513.00            


   County Sales Tax Credit 95,000.00   -1.921 -182.50


COUNTY EMS 250,000.00           100,000.00    5,000.00      95,000.00   0.548 52.06           52.06              


COUNTY SCHOOL M&O 250,000.00           100,000.00    2,000.00      98,000.00   20.000 1,960.00       1,960.00          


COUNTY SCHOOL BOND 250,000.00           100,000.00    -              100,000.00  1.650 165.00          165.00            


COUNTY FIRE 250,000.00           100,000.00    5,000.00      95,000.00   1.991 189.15          189.15            


TOTALS 29.839 3,086.22       (182.50)  2,903.73          


2,903.73          


Sample Property Tax Statement - Unincorporated


Penalty


Interest


TOTAL DUE 2,903.73          


Proposed 2011 Millage Rates 


Entity Adjusted FMV


Net 


Assessment Exemptions


Taxable 


Value


Millage 


Rate Gross Tax Credit Net Tax


STATE TAX 250,000.00           100,000.00    2,000.00      98,000.00   0.250 24.50           24.50              


COUNTY M&O 250,000.00           100,000.00    5,000.00      95,000.00   7.637 725.52          536.28            


   County Sales Tax Credit 95,000.00   -1.992 -189.24


COUNTY EMS 250,000.00           100,000.00    5,000.00      95,000.00   0.450 42.75           42.75              


COUNTY SCHOOL M&O 250,000.00           100,000.00    2,000.00      98,000.00   20.000 1,960.00       1,960.00          


COUNTY SCHOOL BOND 250,000.00           100,000.00    -              100,000.00  1.650 165.00          165.00            


COUNTY E911 250,000.00           100,000.00    5,000.00      95,000.00   0.207 19.67           19.67              


COUNTY FIRE 250,000.00           100,000.00    5,000.00      95,000.00   2.500 237.50          237.50            


TOTALS 30.702 3,174.95       (189.24)  2,985.71          


2,985.71          


Change in Taxes Due State -                  


County M&O 23.28              


County EMS (9.31)               


County School M&O -                  


County School Bond -                  


E911 19.67              


County Fire 48.36              


TOTAL TAX 81.99              


Interest


TOTAL DUE


TOTAL DUE


Sample Property Tax Statement - Unincorporated


Penalty





		Finance- 2011 Millage Rates Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- 2011 Millage Rates Backup

		Copy of Archive- Finance- 2011 Millage Rates Backup.pdf

		Finance- 2011 Millage Rates Backup.pdf

		Finance - 2011 Millage Rates - Request-Backup.pdf

		Finance - 2011 MillageRatesAgendaRequestFile.pdf

		Finance - 2011MillageRatesBackup



		Microsoft PowerPoint - 2011 Millage Rates



		2011NewsAD-UPDATED(2) xls



		Finance- 2011 Millage Rates












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Toni Jo Howard


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Policy No. 300.07 which amends the County's Reserve Fund Policy in compliance with the 


Governmental  Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54.


The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 54, with which Fayette County must comply.  This 


statement requires changes in references and terminology related to the maintenance of the County's reserve fund. 


 


The County's Policies and Procedures Manual contains a series of policies related to the County's financial operation. Policy number 


300.07, known as the Reserve Fund Policy, needs to be updated in order to comply with the new requirements of  GASB.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Policy No. 300.07 which amends the County's Reserve Fund Policy in compliance with the 


Governmental  Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, August 11, 2011







FAYETTE COUNTY 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 


FISCAL POLICIES 
Reserve Funds-Updated 


300.07 
PURPOSE 
 
The county will maintain a sufficient working capital reserve in the general, fire, EMS, and E911 
funds to help offset economic downturns, provide sufficient working capital and provide for 
sufficient cash flow for current financial needs.  In addition, the county will maintain an 
emergency fund reserve in the general fund. 
 
POLICY  
 
There shall be a consistent and uniform process for maintaining working capital and emergency 
fund reserves for Fayette County. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
The County will maintain a working reserve equal to at least three months of the fund 
appropriations budget for the general, fire, EMS, and E911 funds.  This amount will be 
maintained as stabilization funds in the committed fund classification, except for E911 which 
will be maintained within the restricted fund classification. These reserves shall be created and 
maintained to provide the capacity to: 
 


1. Offset significant economic downturn and the revision of any general government 
activity; 


 
2. Provide sufficient working capital; and 


 


3. Provide a sufficient cash flow for current financial needs at all times without short-term 
borrowing. 


 
To be able to use funds that are committed for stabilization, the Board of Commissioners must 
take formal action to release funds.  This type of action will only be taken when failure to take 
such action would result in a negative position for the unassigned fund balance.  


In addition to the working capital reserves, the County will also maintain a $2 million emergency 
funding in the assigned fund classification.  The emergency funding will only be used for a 
declared state of natural disaster.  The funds will not be released without formal action of the 
Board of Commissioners. 


The county will also maintain reserves in compliance with all debt service requirements to 
maintain bond ratings and the marketability of bonds. The county will develop capital reserves to 
provide for normal replacement of existing capital plant and additional capital improvements 
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. 





		Finance- GASB Reserve Fund Policy Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- GASB Reserve Fund Policy Backup2






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign the Questionnaire for Officials describing the Accounting Procedures 


and Requirements for Shared Cash, Proceeds, and Tangible Property.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office has been selected for a random Compliance Review of the Equitable Sharing Funds being conducted 


by the United States Department of Justice and the United States Department of the Treasury.   


 


The Questionnaire for Officials, which describes the accounting procedures used for the Equitable Sharing Funds, is one part of this 


required Compliance Review process. 


 


Supporting documentation concerning this item contains sensitive information regarding the Sheriff's Department's participation in 


investigations that result in the County receiving equitable sharing funds, thus this information will not be posted on the County's website. 


 


 


 


Approval of the Sheriff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign the Questionnaire for Officials describing the Accounting Procedures 


and Requirements for Shared Cash, Proceeds, and Tangible Property.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 11, 2011








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Department - Jail Captain Steve Coker


Approval of the Sheriff's Department Jail Division request to dispose of items of clothing and bedding from the Jail which are no longer 


serviceable.


Approximately once a year, staff from the Jail requests permission to dispose of old inmate clothing and bedding that is no longer of use 


to them.  These items are normally incinerated.  The last request of this type occurred at the April 23, 2009 Board of Commissioners 


meeting. 


 


In order to destroy items belonging to Fayette County, the Board of Commissioners must declare them to be of no further use to the 


County, 


Approval to allow the Sheriff's Department to dispose of old articles of clothing and bedding no longer serviceable. 


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 11, 2011









		Sheriff- Disposal Clothing Agenda Request File.pdf

		Sheriff- Disposal Clothing Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $2,079.73 for reimbursement 
for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies. 


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work with investigation in cooperation with these agencies. 
 
This request to to account for funds that have been received from the various federal programs for the 22010-2011 Fiscal Year. 
 
This request, if approved, would revise the Overtime Budget Account to $203,049.67.


Approval of the Sheriff's request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division by $2,079.73 for 
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 11, 2011








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Consideration of the Water Committee's recommendation to award the annual contract for Waterline Extensions for Fiscal Year 2012 to 


the low bidder, Lantz Construction, in the amount of $765,355.00, and to authorize the Chairman to sign said contract, pending review by 


the County Attorney.


This is an annual contract.  Having a contract in place enables the Water System to immediately take care of emergencies and expedite 


waterline installations.  The current contract ended on June 30, 2011. 


 


Bids for this contract were sent to other contractors, but only Lantz Construction and Shockley Pumbling responded to the bid.  Those 


contractors who did not respond chose to not respond due various reasons (already committed to too many jobs, and logistics of having 


to be in the area for emergency response and hard to compete on price.) 


 


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award the annual contract for Waterline Extensions for Fiscal Year 2012 to the 


low bidder, Lantz Construction, in the amount of $765,355.00, and to authorize the Chairman to sign said contract, pending review by the 


County Attorney.


Funding is provided in the Water System budget for 2012-2013.  


Yes Thursday, August 12, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, August 11, 2011













		Water System- Annual Waterline Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- Annual Waterline Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to reimburse a Water System customer for damaged clothing in the amount of 


$103.07 conditioned upon the customer submitting the clothing in exchange for the check.


On Saturday, June 27, 2011, there was a main break on Redwine Road that affected several streets.  After the water was turned back 


on, a water customer who lives in the Jefferson Woods subdivision washed a load of clothes.  However, due to the results of the break, 


his clothes were stained.  The customer was advised to use Red-B-Gone to remove the stains, and the product was delivered to the 


customer, but the stains did not come out of the clothing.  The customer has requested reimbursement for two of his shirts in the amount 


of $103.07. 


 


The Water Committee has recommended reimbursing the customer in the amount of $103.07 with the stipulation that the customer pick 


up his check at the Water System and that he turn in the stained clothes.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to reimburse a Water System customer for damaged clothing in the amount of 


$103.07 with two stipulations:  that the customer pick up the check from the Water System, and that the customer turns in the damaged 


clothing.


This item will be paid out of the Water System Public Relations budget category.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 11, 2011









		Water System- Customer Reimbursement Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- Customer Reimbursement Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Consideration of the Water Committee's recommendation to award construction of the Lake McIntosh Raw Water Pump Station bid to the 


low bidder, Willow Construction, in the amount of $1,293,600, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract contingent upon 


review by the County Attorney.


Two bidders, Willow Construction and P. F. Moon responded to the bid opening for the Lake McIntosh Raw Water Pump Station on July 


19, 2011.  Willow Construction was low bid at $1,293,600.00.  This bid is for the Lake McIntosh Project and the raw water pump station is 


for drawing water from Lake McIntosh and to be treated at the water treatment plant. 


 


Four other companies All South Constructors, Lanier Contracting Company, Brad Cole Construction and The Eshelman Company 


received bid packages, but did not respond to the bid. 


 


All South Construction reported they had too much work and could not take on any more at this time.  Brad Cole, who is the dam 


contractor, considered bidding for the work, but he concluded that there was too much work they would have to subcontract.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award the Lake McIntosh Raw Water Pump Station bid to the low bidder, Willow 


Construction, in the amount of $1,293,600, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract contingent upon review by the County 


Attorney.


Funding is provided in the Water System budget for Lake McIntosh.  


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, August 11, 2011









		Water System- Lake McIntosh RWP Station Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- Lake McIntosh RWP Station Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Consideration of the Water Committee's recommendation to issue a purchase order for the purchase of all required Orion water meters, 


by September 1, 2011, at a total cost of $2,018,465.78, to accept a credit of $1,009,761.49, and approval to pay for the project during 


Fiscal Year 2013.


On October 1, 2008, the Fayette County Water System requested the Board's authorization to purchase Orion Meters and Transponders 


from Badger Meter in an effort to replace older Trace Meters and Transponders.  The Board unanimously authorized the Water System to 


replace the older meters via a three-year replacement process.   


 


Recently, the Federal Communications Commission has informed Badger Meter that they are re-banding the radio frequency used by the 


older Trace meters, and this action will affect the Water System's ability to read water meters. 


 


Badger Meters had offered Fayette County Water System a two-for-one special; specifically, for every two meters purchased a third 


meter will be provided to the county for free.  In other words, although the total project would cost $3,028,227.27, the special would 


provide a $1,009,761,49 credit to the Water System.  The revised cost for this project is $2,018,465.78 


 


The Water System budgeted $884,000 in the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for this purpose.  If approved, the Water System will need to 


budget $1,134,465.78 in the Fiscal Year 2013 budget.  This project will be paid during the Fiscal Year 2013 timeframe.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to issue an order for the purchase of all required Orion water meters, by September 


1, 2011, at a total cost of $2,018,465.78, and approval to pay for the project during Fiscal Year 2013.


Funds are budgeted in the Water System FY 2012 operating budget, and additional funds will be budgeted in FY 2013.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, August 11, 2011







Board of Commissioners Minutes
October 1, 2008
Page 4


  


  


  


STAFF REPORTS:
WATER SYSTEM DIRECTOR TONY PARROTT:   Water System Director Tony Parrott asked for the Board’s
consideration to purchase Orion Meters and Transponders from Badger Meter in an effort to replace older
Trace Meters and Transponders also purchased from Badger currently in use throughout Fayette County.  He
noted this change out would occur over the next three years and no additional funding was being requested.
He pointed out that Badger will no longer be providing Trace, but instead will be providing their new AMR
called Orion.  He said this meter will attach to the existing Badger meter base and the transponder will attach
to the meter lid through the existing 2-inch hole in the lids.  He said the receiving unit for the Orion is a laptop
computer while the receiving unit for the Trace is a Mobile Meter Interrogator, which is the size of a small two
drawer file cabinet.  He said the cost of the laptop with the Orion software would be $20,990 and a handheld
interrogator is $4,500.  He said since the Trace unit was no longer available, Badger will honor the warranty
with the Orion units and in addition will give a $5.00 credit for each Trace unit exchanged that was no longer
under warranty.  He stated that the plan would be to convert approximately 200 Trace AMR’s each month for
the last seven months of this fiscal year.  He noted the cost of this would be $25,490 for the laptop with the
Orion software, handheld interrogator and $168,000 for the 1,400 transponders.  He noted the cost for FY’09
would be $193,490 with the funding coming from the meter installations budgeted in the Repairs to Meters and







Board of Commissioners Minutes
October 1, 2008
Page 5


Lines account and from the Renewal and Extension Fund.  He said the conversion over to Orion AMR would
be done over the next three years and be budgeted annually.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the Water System Director Tony Parrott to allow the Water
System to change over to the Orion Meter system from the Trace Meter system that is currently being used.
Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


  


  


 


                              
                            

















		Water System- Orion Meter Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- Orion Meter Backup

		Water System- Orion Meter Backup-1.pdf

		Water System- Orion Meter Backup

		Water System- Orion Meter Backup-1.pdf

		Water System- Orion Meter Backup- 2














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Consideration of a Joint Funding Agreement between Fayette County and the U. S. Department of the Interior Geological Survey which 


provides for the monitoring of water flow at four sites.  The Agreement is for one year beginning October 1, 2011 and ending September 


30, 2012 with a cost to the Water System of $90,600.00


The Georgia Department of Natural Resources requires that our Water System (and all others) monitor the flow of water in our raw water 


sources, below where Fayette County takes out water for storage, treatment and distribution.  The U.S. Geological Survey, Water 


Resources Division, performs this type of work, so Fayette County contracts with USGS for their services.  Some sites are also monitored 


for water quality.  There are four "monitoring stations" at locations on the Flint River, two on Line Creek, and one on Shoal Creek.  


Monitoring ensures adequate water flow below the the County's facilities.  The volume of water in a stream effects plant and animal life. 


 


The cost of the monitoring this year is $90,600.00.  These funds are budgeted annually in the Water System operating budget.


Authorization to enter into the Agreement with USGS for the annual monitoring of the Flint River, two sites on Line Creek and Shoal 


Creek.


These funds are budgeted annually in the Water System's Maintenance and Operating Budget.


Yes September 9, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 11, 2011

















		Water System- USGS Joint Fund...ement Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- USGS Joint Funding Agreement Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to authorize the Peachtree City Water and Sewerage Authority (WASA) to insert a 


flyer in customer's water bills during the months of September 2011 and March 2012.


Stephen Hogan of the Peachtree City Water and Sewerage Authority has requested that inserts be placed in  customers' water bills in 


both September 2011 and March 2012. 


 


The inserts will be informational only.  An example of the insert is attached for review. 


 


The cost for postage to mail the inserts will not change, and the inserts will be provided by the Peachtree City Water and Sewerage 


Authority.


Approval to include an insert from Peachtree City Water & Sewerage Authority in the water bills during the months of September 2011 


and March 2012.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentAugust 11, 2011













		Water System- WASA Mailer Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- WASA Mailer Backup



